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Date: 09/04/97
To: Gerald & Brenda
Fax: 948-1541
From: Todd Taverner

Phone: (604) 543-5011 Fax: 604) 543-9543
Subject: Taverner @m pdso Ul

Number Of Pages (including cover): 12 |

I'have spent some time on the internet recently looking at all kinds of links to our family
and bere 1s some of what I have found. ‘
The first portion is from England and pertains 1o some rather old folks., Though this may
be premature with repards to where we are it may connecl in be:ween the hundred year
giap we have between these people and William and Margare (Bay de Verde). 1 will be E-
mailing the author of this information to sce if they may have some more info to share
which may be a little more relevant to us right now. These listings were one of some 25()
which [ browsed. Can you believe that Taverners are mentiored that many times? Most
listings refer to a very prolific composer of choral music and his works. Though there are
a few mdividuals listed most are in reference to business'. [ may E-mail those individualg
to prod for some information afrer the main Genealogy source has respondedd

"The sccond group of information is in response 1o an E-mail which [ sent to a man in ‘
Michigan who was researching Vardy in Newfoundland. Though the information 1sn’t '
Taverner specific I thought { would inquire anyway. Sure enough he had Sarah Ann in hi
trec. He responded with the E-mail which is attached. You probably have some of this
info but there may be something there of interest. [ have been' looking at postings on the
tnteinct similar to this one for spouses who married into the Taverner family. You never
know what is under that unturned rock. I will be responding to the man trom Michigan
with some descendant information from Sarah Vardy as he requested.

Hope you tind this interesting.

Todd Tavemer
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® BIRTF: 1737, Ireland? [S6353] |
¢ LVENI: bel 1740, Ircland 1o Philadelphia to Augusta County, Virginia [S7806] -
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® DEATH: abt 24 Sep 1558, North Weald Bassett, England
it ® BURIAL: 24 Sep 1558, North Weald Bassett, England [S7800]

Father: Walter TA YERNER
Mother: Alice (TAVERNLR)

Family I: George RAYNSI'QORD
® MARRIAGLE: bel 1552, North Weald Bassctt?, England [$7800]

Hercules RAYNSEORD
Joluit RAYNSFORD
Richard RAYNSFORD
Henry RAYNSFORD
Martha RAYNSFORD

e ol

Walter TAVERNER |~
| |

' I=-Kalliecine TAVEKNER

- _Alize (TAVERNER) 1T
|

INDEX
(\N otes

Katherine Taveruer, daughter of Walter and Alice () Taverner of
North Weald Bassctt, almost certainly the Ktherine Rainsford buried
there 24 September 1558. Visitation pedigrees call her dauphter of
"[blank | Taverer of Theydon Garnon,” but two Taverner wills prove her
parentage.
The will of Walter Taverner of "North Wyld bassctt," Gentleman
dated 23 January 1523 and proved 14 February 1524 (Archdeaconry Court
of Essex. 103 Sell) requests burial in the churchyard of St. Andrew i
said parish, and leaves daughter Kateryn a bullock, son John a bay
colte, son Rauf tour nobles, daughter Alice a calf, four shillings to
Thomas Morse, four shillings to Margarett TAverner, ten shi Nings to
my brother Andrew Tuveruer, three shillings four pence to daughter

(@ Jane, 110 "for an trenball of masses to be songe for my soulc [my]

’ father & mother's souls & all those soles | am bound to prayc for."
Propenty in the parish of Roxwell to be sold and its profit
distributed "among my children equally to Walter, Raut, John Jhane,
Kateryn and Alice. . . . Alice my wife to have my house & my landc
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18567: Christian BARTER (-) _ ‘ ) Pagcsg 7

lying in the parish of Margaret[rooth]ynyg during her life," with
) remainder to son Walter and his hows, John Colyn of Wreuty!l

(Writtle) was nanied overseer and the will was witnessed by Thomas ‘

Wyllymison, John Dowset, and George Hynde.

The will of John Tavemer of Theydon Garnon, yeoman, made 16 Augusl

1552, no date of probate entered (ibid., 153 Boswick; copy in Calendar

ol State Papers; Dommestic, 6 413-4) names brother Ralph Taverner of

Heninghani, godson John Rainsford, sister Joan Pycke, mother Wybred und

‘my father John Wybred of Copersall,” sister Maynard. daughter

Kathetine, brother George Rainstord, daughter June and son

Chustopher. Should his own children die, estate to be divided among

children ol "y brothers and sisters,” and executors to be brothers

Rainstord, Glustock aud Maynard and father John Wybred,
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David Chambers WALLACE

® BIRTH: 12 May

Father: Robet WALLACE
Mother: Rebecca CIIJAMBERS
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Walter TAVERNER

® DEATH: bet 14 Feb 1524, North Weald Bassett, England [$7800]
® BURIAL. abv 1524, St Andrew, North Weald Bassett, Cngland [S7800]

Family 1. Alice (TAVLERNER)

® MARRIAGL

Walter TAVERNER
Katherine TAVERNER
John TAVERNER yE
Ralph IAVERNER  Denarn prrec 1552 ResrbeD vy BEMuNginam , EnNg. N 15
Alice TAVLERNER !

Jane TAVLRNER

T

(--Wilizr TAVERNEK

INDL X
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The will of Walter Taverner of "North Wyld bassctt,” Gentleman
dated 23 January 1523 and proved 14 February 1524 (Archdeaconry Court
of Essex. 103 Scll) requests burial in the churchyard of St. Andrew in
said parish, and leaves daughter Kateryn a bullock. son John a bay
colte, son Rauf four nobles, daughter Alice a calf, four shi Ilings to
Thomas Murse, tour shillings to Margarctt TAverner, ten shillings 1o
my brother Andrew Tavemer, three shillings four pence 1o daughter
Jane, L10 "{or an treuball of masses to be songe for my soule [ny)
father & mother's souls & ull those soles [ am bound 1o praye for."
Property in the parish of Koxwell (o be sold and its profir
distributed "among my children equally to Walter, Rauf, John Jhane,
Kateryn and Alice. . ., Alice my wile to have my house & my lande
m lying in the parish of Margaret[rooth]yng during her life,” with
remainder to son Walter and his heirs, John Colyn of Wrertyl|
(Writtle) was named overseer and the will was witnessed by Thoruas
Wyllymson, John Dowset, and George Hynde
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John TAVERNER

® DLALIL: aft 16 Aug 1552 [$7800]
® EVENT: Theyden, England [87800]
a8 Resided

Father: Waltey TAVERNER
Mother. Alice (TAVLERNER)

[

r\ Walror TAVERMNEK
|
X y

!
oo Johiy TAVERNER

{_Alice (TAVERNTR) |

L X PV ST

INDLEX

o
Notcs

The will of John Taverner of Theydon Garnon, ycoman, made 16 August
1552, no dute of probate entered (ibid., 1573 Boswick; copy in Calenda

ot Statc Papers; Domestic, 6: 41 3-4) names brother Ralph Taverner of
Heningham, podson Jobn Rainstord, sister Joan Pycke, mother Wybred and
"my tather John Wybred ol Copersall,” sister Maynard, daughter
Katherine, brother George Rainsforg, daughter Janc and son

Christopher. Should his own children die, estate 10 be divided among
children of "my brothers and sisters " and executors to b brothers
Rainsford. Glastock and Maynaid and father John Wybred.
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1550

Richard Taverner paid £333 13 6 to pay the soldiers in Boulogne.

Robert and Elizabeth Taverner sold land in Stapleford Abbott to
John Mayster 3 acres meadow and 7 acres pasture. £20.

Silvester Taverner sold 6 acres called Chauntery Gardens Tenham,
to Robert Pursell (also see 1576).

Richard Taverner purchased 16 acres Pinner Wood from Sir Edward
North Kt. Privy councillor 99 yr lease £10. p.a.

Edmund Taverner Yeoman of Castle Hedingham 58. BW.37 Essex and
Herts Wills index.

POPULATION 3 MILLION.
. Bartholemew Taverner (will). Litchfield 1510-1652 ref. 108.

Rose Taverner (will). Lincoln ref. 271 (1320 - 1600).

= Agnes

| | (Astrey) witness

Thos Taverner.
Thomas Robert Henry Daughter Daughter

William John
Faire Adams

Catherine Taverner married Thomas Arnold at Gosfield. Boyd DB V
VI.

F of F Essex Page 25.68 John Mersshe pl, John Taverner and wife
Margaret def. A third part or purparty of 6 acres of meadow and
12 acres of pasture in Gt Stanbridge. £40.



1551 4

NEWCASTLE LIBRARY

Taverner's and Tindales' version of the Byble combined printed
by John Daye 1551.

Contains the "Wife beating note" at 1 Peter iii C..... He taketh
(his wife) as a necessary helper and not a born servant... and
if she be not obedient and helpful unto him, enderavoureth to
beate the fere of god into her heade that she may be compelled
to learn her duty and do it.

(see Historical Cat of Printed Bible 20163 P.52)



1551

17th April (ref. Hunts Wills Vol 9.22) Agnes Taverner of
Stevenage (North of Hatfield) widow (see Thomas Taverner will
1530) .



1552

Rose Taverner of Boston, Lincoln Wills 1320 - 1600 177.

John Yeoman of Theydon Garnon 153 ER 5.

Walter Rafe John = Mistress Sister = Sister = Sister =
| Branch Brother Brother G Raynesford
Maynard Glascocke. |

Childre Children
John

| *
Kateryn Johanne Jane Christopher
£20 £20 Farm. Garnoshe Mylle

*see will of J.Wyberd 1559.

Father-in-Law John Wyberd.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 49

Source: Inner Temple Library
Title: Inner Temple Parliament

7 May 1553
Inner Temple

Stewards for Christmas:- Sheldon, Dormer, Tufton, and Stapelton.

Marshals:- Basketfild, Barette, Chocke, Lucye, Many, the elder, Smyth, Warnecombe,
Taverner, and Denton.

Butlers:- Sepolle, Basshe, Fyssher, and Patente.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 48

Source: Inner Temple Library
Title: Inner Temple Parliament

28 January 1554
Inner Temple

Master Basketfild, Master Chocke, Master Lucy, Master Mayne, the elder, Master
Wornecombe, Master Smyth, T., Master Taverner, Master Denton, and Master Barrette,
amerced 5£ each for not exercising the office of marshal, to which they were elected.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 23

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Mary iii 1

1 February 1554

Edmund Downynge to

Roger and Robert Taverner of London:

indenture of sale of the manor of Boyton and the barton of Bradridge, county
Cornwall, and the manor of Stoke and Bradley, county Worcester.



1554
Silvester Taverner. Uxbridge. 2 horses stolen.

Thomas Taverner Camb Alumni Caius College 6th Son of John
Taverner of North Elmham Matric 1554 Lord of the Manor of
Kettlesdon whose son Robert married daugther of Grimstone.

Robert Taverner land in Essex, Priors, Lambourne.

F of F Essex page 43.41 Robert Taverner gent, pl Hy Earl of
Sussex viscount Fitz Water, Lord Egremond and Burnell, def. The
Manor of Priors and 2 messauges 2 tofts, 1 garden, 3 orchards,
30 acres of arable, 20 acres of meadow and 20 acres of pasture
in Lambourne £80.00.

Thomas Taverner husbandman of Pynven - Worcester wills.

_Session Rolls Callendar:- MR/Sr 31-45 18/4/1554. Indictment of
James Goddyskerke of London, yeoman and John Scryren of London,
Poulter for stealing a bay horse spade, Value £5 and a roan horse
spade value 40s from Silvester Taverner gent of Uxbridge. The
former Hanged.

TAVERNER, THOMAS. Matric. pens. from CORPUS CHRISTI,
Michs. 1554. Probably 6th s. of John, of North Elmham,
Norfolk (by his 2nd wife Anne Crane, of Norfolk). Of
Kettlestone, Norfolk, Married Mary, dau. of Bartholomew
Skippon. Buried at Horningtoft, June 12, 1604. Probably
half-brother of Silvanus (above), etc, (Carthew, Laundiich,

©1.579.)
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1555

21 March (Hunts wills Vol 10.97)

William Taverner of North Mims, husbandman (South Mims is South
of Hatfield) Wife Agnes, no children mentioned. Sum of Inventory
£25.0s 22d.

Robert and Roger Taverner and Edmund Downynge bought Manor of
Boyton in Cornwall and Manor of Stoke and Bradley, Co Worcester.

. Robert Taverner 14 acres at Chigwell to John Stoner.

Thomas Taverner husbandman pinven W.I. ref. Worcester Wills
(1451-1600).

Robert Taverner married Joanna Blakemore (wills) of Buttusbury
to marry there. (London Marriage Licences).

F of F Essex page 50.33 John Stoner, George Scott, Robert
Taverner, Thos Barfote gent, John Boland, Thos Northrope, Robert
Spakeman, Ralph Hill, Richard Cuddard, Micheal Pott, Nicholas
Hill, George Hokmes, John Wybert, Hy Archer and Stephen Archer
pl Anth Brown esq and wife Joan def. 3 acres of meadow and 11 1/2
acres of pasture in Chigwell. def. quit claimed to pl and the
heirs of John Stoner 100mks.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 16

Source: Auctioned and dispersed 1914 (Sotheby’s): RCHM xxxix 258-9
Title: Hodgkin Manuscripts

28 March 1556
[pamphlet of six leaves, stitched together]

This is the Presentment of William Genninges and his Fellowes of all suche
offences as do cum to ther knowledge before this day, the which is the xxviijth
of the present moneth of March, annis regnorum Phillippi et Marie &c.,
secundo et tercio.

Richard Worley, gentlemen, farmer of Ayberry, for keeping in pasture a close
cawlled Hyll Feld conteyninge iii*™ acres, wherof xx" acres was plowed and
sowne foure tymes within this xx" yeres.

Richard Whitt, of Holborne, inholder, for keeping all in pasture a close of the
above-said Richard Worley, parcell of the farm of Ayberry cawlled Hyll
Felde, conteyning xl acres, wherof xx" acres was plowed and sowen within
this xx" yeres foure tymes.

Rodger Raper, of Holborne, pullter, for holding all to pasture two closes,
parcell of the farme of St. Jaymes, conteyning xx" acres, that were plowed and
sown four times within the last forty years.

Raphe Martyn, of Saynt Gyelles, for keeping to pasture and in some years
mowing for meadow a close cawlled Seynt Gyeles Felde, conteyninge xxx"
acres, that was ploughed and sown four times within the last twenty years.

Henry Smith for holding to farmn in Kensington for[ty] acres of ground, of
which he keeps to pasture twenty-seven acres, that were plowed and sowen
fowre tymes within this xI yeres.



FONS

John Awmry and Raphe Cannock, of Westminster, for keeping to pasture in
Kensington a closse cawlled Hoggmorwell, conteyning six acres that were
ploughed and sown four times with the last forty years.

William Holden of Battersey, and Hunte of Holborn, for keeping to pasture in
Kensington ii closes cauld Qwale Feldes, conteyning xii acres, that were
ploughed and sown four times within the last forty years.

..... Stairback, of St Clement’s butcher, for keeping to pasture in Kensington a
closse cawlled Halfe Hyde, conteyning xi acres, that was ploughed and sown
four times within the last forty years.

John Garraway and James Kemp, gentlemen, and Christopher Leyland, for
keeping to pasture one hundred acres of land in Acton, held by them of the
Countess of Bedford, widow, which land has been ploughed and sown four
times within the last ..... years.

The said Christopher Leland, for keeping to pasture in Acton a closse called
Deanes Feld conteyning xx" acres, that was plowed and sowen fowre times
within this xliiii yeres.

Robert Burde of Harleston, for keeping to pasture a closse and serten parceles
of lande in the parishe of Acton cawlled Fosters, conteyning xI acres, that
were ploughed and sown four times within the last thirty years.

John Awmry of Westminster, bocher, for keeping to pasture a close caulled
North Felde, conteyning xI acres, in Acton, that was ploughed and sown four
times within the last thirty years.

William Hallam, inholder, for keeping to pasture, and in some years mowing
for meadow a closse conteyning xxx' acres in Acton, that was ploughed and
sown four times within the last thirty years.

Richard Forsett, gentleman, for holding to pasture in Marylebone Ixviii" acres
parcell of the Ferme of Maryborne, wherof xx acres were ploughed and sown
four times within the last thirty years.



FONS

George Harryson, gentleman, for keeping to pasture six acres of the same
farm of Maryborne, that were ploughed and sown four times within the last
thirty years.

John Tremayn, for keeping to pasture thirty-six acres of the same farm of
Maryborne, that were ploughed and sown four times within the last thirty
years.

Nicholas Hill, for keeping to pasture twenty-four acres of the same farm of
Maryborne.

John Fellowes, for keeping to pasture five acres, parcel of the same farm of
Maryborne, that were ploughed and sown four times within the last thirty
years.

John Bedden, for keeping to pasture five acres, parcel of the same farm of
Maryborne, that were ploughed and sown four times within the last thirty
years.

Rodger Taverner, gentleman, for keeping to pasture three acres of the same
farm of Maryborne, that were ploughed and sown four times within the last
thirty years.

John Bartram of London, inholder, for keeping to pasture a feld caulled Hyll
Felde conteyning xI acres in Paddington, that was ploughed and sown four
times in the last forty years.

John Stamford of London, butcher, for keeping to pasture a close cawlled
Lounge Mead conteyning xvi acres in Padington, that was ploughed and sown
four times within the last thirty years.

John Bellow of Smythfeld, inholder, for keeping to pasture a closse cawlled
Ponde Felde conteyning xI acres in Padington, that was ploughed and sown
four times in the last thirty years.



FONS

Richard Whytt of Holborne, for keeping to pasture iii closses conteyning Ix
acres in Padington that were ploughed and sown four times within the last
thirty years, howbit this yere he hathe plowed and sowen ix acres.

..... Cawton of London, haberdasher, for keepig to pasture a farm in
Padington conteyning Ix acres whereof xI acres was plowed and sowne fowre
tymes within this xxx" yeres.

John Slannyng, for keeping 140 acres in Hampsteed, and also for keeping to
pasture another farm, called Chawcoots, containing 120 acres, in the same
parish, which land he lets to butchers and innholders of London.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Itemno 5

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Privy Council Register: Mary ii 465

29 July 1556
Eltham

A lettre to Sir Roger Cholmeley and Doctour Marten to repaie to the convicte
prison at Westminster, and to proceade to the further examinacion of Silvester
Taverner, prisoner there, who, having imbeaselyd certaine plate and other
goodes, aswell bilonging to the Quenes Majestie as to sundry other personnes
besides, will by no meanes hitherto declare where the same is become,
notwithstanding the matter is alredy confessed against him by two others; and
therefore they are required, for the better atteyning of the trueth, to put him to
suche tortours as by thier discreacions shalbe thought convenient, for whiche
purpose the Keper of the said prison is likewise written unto in that matter.
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:. 1556.] ACTS OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL. 7

This day upon earnest sute made unto the Quenes Heighnes 5%1;[ Nicholas
by the Ladie Throkmerton, wiefe unto Sir Nicholas Throk- = o8merten:
merton, who is presently in Fraunce, it was declared unto her
by the moost Reverende Fatlor the Lord Cardinalles grace, in
presence of the Lord Chauncellour, the Lord Steward, the
Lord Privie Seale, therle of Pembroke, the Bishop of Ely,
and others of the Kinge and Quenes Majesties” Pryvie Counsaill
that her Heighnes was contented she might for this once
send somme present reliefe unto the said Sir Nicholas, her

husbonde, so that the same exceaded not the value of xI
crownes,

At St. James’, the viijth of Octobre, 1556.

Thaiaparaunce as bifore.

A lettre to the Bishop of London, Mr, Deane of Pawles, p. 527.
Sir Roger Cholieley, knight, and Thomas Martyn, esquier, il;fiioiﬁ‘g\(’tst-
that where they have heretofore taken ordre betwene Anthony wminster.
Maria, musitian, and Silvester Taverner, prisouer in the Con-
vict Prison at Westminster, they are willed to travaile to se
the same perfourmed, and to cause Taverner [to] be bounde in
- suche bandes as they shall thinke convenient bifore he be dis-
. charged of his imprisonment to kepe the peax against the
-~ said Anthony Maria, aswell for him self as for all others by
~ his meanes and procurement.

At St. James’, the ix of Octobre, 1556.

Thapparaunce.
The Lord Chauncellour. Mr. Secretary Bourne. :
The Lord Stewarde. Sir Thomas Wharton. . ‘!
The Lord Pryvie Secale. Sir JO]I?__,??‘—I{._?,I_‘.'__,___.__“__ 3
Therle of Pembroke. __.-Sir“John Mason~\\ _ :

The Bishop of Elye.

.~ Sir Henry Bedingfeld. S
Mr. Secretary Petre. \ "_’_)




1556

. Robert Taverner of Lambourne died PC & C wills 1383 - 1558

Son Thomas 14 months.

Robert Elizabeth Ann Mathew William Richard Christopher Thos
1588 1589 1591 1592 1595 1599 1600 1590

Thomas Taverner of Billingborough - wills in Lincoln.

? = Bartholemew Thos Taverner = Alice Sister = ? Sutton
Inn Keeper |

all his children Son Thos

William Hugo John Thos Cousin Isabel Waller

Thos

Silvester Taverner arrested, tortured for stealing the Queens
Plate.



1557
Thomas Taverner. Lincoln wills 1320 - 1600 III 150.

% William Taverner Lincoln wills 1320 - 1600 III 28.

William of Tattershall

John William Winifred

. William Taverner of Stock. Essex and East Herts wills index
l 222 EW 3

Margery = William Taverner Rombold Edward
d.1557 at Stock

|
| | |

Robert Mary Margaret

William Taverner Baptised Aston Rowant 9th July Oxon, died 3rd
August ref: P.W. Tyrrell, probably the son of# Richard Taverner
of North Elmham.

F of F page 60.63 Humphrey Fryth and wife Robergia pl John
Hoppysley gent, and wife Mary def. 1 messauges and 16 acres of
pasture in Upminster. Def quit claimed to pl and the heirs of
Humphrey £40.

Nicholas Taverner - See Stationers Company - Devon.



1558
Edmund Taverner (wife Ann) died - was mourned Stapleford, Tawney.

Edmund Taverner married Ann? Stapleford, Tawney Boyds Married
index DBV VI.

March 13th John, Son of Mathew Taverner Hatfield Broad Oak,
baptised.

visitations 1558 - Brockett
Nicholas Brockett = Jane Wiseman daughter of John Wiseman

of Willingale of Canfield

P
John = Elizabeth daugther of Thomas Taverner
of Lambourne

’éould this be mother of and not daughter of.

Visitations 1558 - Harris.

Christopher Harris = Mary, daugther of Thos Bridge of
of Sherfield Sherfield
= daugther of = Edward Harris of Much Baddow

Taverner of Raynesham in Essex, gent.

N.B. In 1634 Visitations in a revision that Edward Harris of Much
Baddow was also a councillor at Law of Lincoln's Inn Field and
his wife was Elizabeth daughter of Robert Taverner of Aveley.
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1559

8th July John Taverner married Joan Kent at Oxford City St
Aldgates ref. P.W. Tyrrell.

Joan Taverner widow, married Humphrey Younge at Gt Baddow.

John Taverner husbandman of Hatfield Broadoke 2 MR 2 Essex
and East Herts, wills index. Daughter Margaret.

John = Agnes
d.1558 | d.1559

| 1

Pernell Margaret Jone William =

cow+2/- cow+20/- =
Thos Harwood

John William

John
William
Mary

. 1559 Agnes Taverner widow of John (1558) of Hatfield B.O.
Essex and East Herts wills index ERO ref. 13 MR 2.

1559 John Taverner mentioned in will of John Wyberde who died
at Theydon Garnum (see 1552).




1558
Edmund Taverner(ﬁife Ann)died - was mourned Stapleford, Tawney.

Edmund Taverner married Ann? Stapleford, Tawney Boyds Married

New - index DBV VI.
AR % )
O 1558 John Taverner married Joan Kent at Oxford City St Aldgates

ref. P.W. Tyrrell.
Joan Taverner widow, married Humphrey Younge at Gt Baddow.

. John Taverner husbandman of Hatfield Broadoke 2 MR 2 Essex

and East Herts, wills index. Daughter Margaret.
i
John = Agnes
d.1558 d.1559
Pernell Margaret Jone William = ?
cow+2 /- cow+20/- = |
Thos Harwood
John William
John
William
Mary
. 1559 Agnes Taverner widow of John (1558) of Hatfield B.O.
0o Essex and East Herts wills index ERO ref. 13 MR 2.

1559 John Taverner mentioned in will of John Wyberde

who Did ot Thastolon  § arsecns (S 1552)
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FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 31

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Pardon Roll 1 Elizabeth 1i m.37

15 January 1559

Pardon for Philip Taverner of Wasshyngton, county Sussex, husbandman, for
all treasons, felonies (except murders and robberies in dwelling houses and on
or near the highways) and other offences (long list) committed before All
Saints last [1 November 1558]; except offences touching changing the royal
state or the succession to the Crown, offences touching Calais, conspiracy
against the present queen’s person in the time of queen Mary, breach of
statutes of provisions and premunire, offences involving forfeiture of office,
and offences touching customs and subsidies; and except offences of which
information has been laid in the Queen’s Bench or Exchequer or before the
Council, and concealment or detention of goods of the Crown; letters of
pardon to be sued for before 20 June 1559; fee to be 26s 8d only.

By the queen.



1560

3rd January (Will Hunts Vol 12a 39) Edmund Taverner of .
Godmanchester (North West of Cambridge). Wife Agnes, daughters e
Druery. Grandsons Atwell Taverner and brother Robert Taverner
both under 18 at time of will. Witness John Scott and Gilys
Wytinge. Probate 20th May, sum of Inventory £9.15s.10d.

Edmund Taverner mentioned in will of Richard Makin of Barking.

Edmund Taverner member of Grand Jury Essex Assize.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 6

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Patent Roll 3 Elizabeth xi mm.41-42

1 March 1561

Foundation, at the suit of the bailiffs and freemen and inhabitants of
Kyngeston upon Thames, county Surrey, of the free grammar school of queen
Elizabeth in the parish of Kyngeston, with a master and usher. Incorporation
of the two bailiffs of the town as governors; appointment of William Matson
and George Snellinge, now bailiffs, to be the first and present governors.
Grant to the governors of the free chapel called Marye Magdalene Chappell in
Norbiton in Kyngeston upon Thames with a little chapel called Sainte Loyes
Chappell to the south of Marye Magdalene Chappell and other appurtenances
(described), and the reversion and yearly rent of 21s of the premises, which
were leased inter alia by patent of the Court of Augmentations, 26 April 1
Edward VI [1547], to Richard Taverner for 21 years from Michaelmas then
next at a yearly rent, for the premises and other lands leased therewith, of £12
12d; yearly value 21s; to hold as of the honour of Hampton Courte, county
Middlesex, in socage; issues from Michaelmas last. Grant to the governors of
power, with the advice of the bishop of Winchester, to appoint the master and
usher and to draw up statutes. Licence for the governors to hold further lands
to the yearly value of £30.

By privy seal.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 47

Source: Inner Temple Library
Title: Inner Temple Parliament

18 May 1561
Inner Temple

Order for the treasurer, Master Wythe and Master Francis Gawdy, to hear and determine
the matter at variance between Master Taverner and the steward, and if they cannot end the
same, to report to the bench within three or four days.

Z / —"’""i’ M I/::,"Afﬁ &
Lc_,u\ [ ot o ¢ LK Rt



1561

Margaret Lambert 1st wife of Richard Taverner buried at Woodeaton
- ref Parish Registry.

Feast of Pentycost. Item from North Elmham Churchwardens accounts
James Taverner Xi jd. He was the 5th son of John Taverner of
North Elmham, and was of Hadlands in the same parish, and died
in 1604 having married Grace, daughter and heir of John Russell
of Wyghton, Norfolk and relict of Edmund Bedingfield. ref. letter
5.9.95 from Rev N. Tewkesbury.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 4

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Patent Roll 4 Elizabeth x m.38d

11 February 1562

Commission of the peace in county Oxford, to *Nicholas Bacon knight &c.,
*William marquess of Winchester &c., *Henry earl of Arundell &c., *Francis
Knolles knight, vice-chamberlain, *Edward Saunders knight, chief baron of
the Exchequer, *Thomas Carus, the queen’s serjeant-at-law, *Richard Blount
knight, *Thomas Benger knight, Edward Umpton knight, *John Doyle,
*Richard Fynes, Edmund Asshefild, Henry Norrys, James Mervyn, Thomas
More, *George Davers, Anthony Carleton, William Dormer, *Christopher
Broun, John Denton, Richard Waynman, John Cupper, John Billinge, Thomas
Gibbons, Humphrey Asshefeld, Anthony Bustard, Richard Taverner, Thomas
Winchcombe and Thomas Lee. To keep and cause to be kept the queen’s
peace and the statutes and ordinances made for its preservation at Winchester,
Northampton and Westminster and the statutes and ordinances made there and
at Cambridge touching hunters, workmen, artificers, servants, innkeepers,
beggars and vagabonds and other begging men calling themselves
travelingmen, also the statutes and ordinances at Westminster, 1 and 2 Henry
IV, against giving or using liveries, also a statute in the Parliament of Henry
V at Westminster against falsification of money, and all other ordinances and
statutes for the good of the queen’s peace and quiet government of the people;
to punish delinquents; to take sureties of those who threaten the people with
bodily violence or burning of their houses, and, if they refuse to find surety,
to imprison them until they find it. To be justices to inquire touching all
felonies, trespasses, forestallings, regratings and extortions, also touching
those who go or ride armed in assemblies against the queen’s peace and in
disturbance of the people, also touching those who lie in wait to maim or kill
the people, also touching those who use caps and other livery of one suit
contrary to the statutes aforesaid, also touching innkeepers and others in the
abuse of measures and weights and the sale of victuals, also touching
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workmen and others who break the statutes aforesaid, and touching sheriffs,
mayors, bailiffs, stewards, constables and keepers of gaols who have been
remiss in enforcing such statutes; and to inspect indictments taken before them
or the late keepers of the peace and justices of Edward IV, Edward V,
Richard III, Henry VII, Henry VIII, Edward VI and Queen Mary and make
and continue process. The same (or two of them, those marked * being of the
quorum) to be justices to hear and determine the offences aforesaid and all
other matters which ought by virtue of the statutes and ordinances aforesaid to
be heard and decided by them; provided that in difficult cases of extortion
judgment be not given except in the presence of a justice of either Bench or a
justice of assize in the county; saving to the queen the amercements and other
things to her belonging. Knolles to produce the writs, processes and
indictments at their sessions.




FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 5

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Patent Roll 4 Elizabeth i m.46

20 March 1562

Presentation of Silvester Taverner, clerk, to the rectory of Marston Morteine,
county Bedford, Lincoln diocese; in the queen’s gift by the minority of
Frances Decons.

By privy seal.



1562

Winifred Taverner, Lichfield wills 1510 - 1652 356.

Robert Winifred Bartholemew
d.1562

Edmund Elizabeth Henry Bartholemew William Robert

dl582 = youngest
eldest William

Larben Daughter Polesworth?

(Luckin)

Witness John Hill
George Laben (Luckin)?
Thus Quton

William Laben (Luckin)?

Penelope Taverner of Richard Taverner of Woodeaton IGI Oxford.

F of F Essex Page 92.20 Thos Lorkyn (Luckin) and Rambold Taverner
pl Robert Smythe esq and wife Joan def. 6 messuages, 3 cotts, 50
1/2 acres arable, 8 acres of meadow and 60 acres of pasture in
Harvard Stock and Buttysbury. Def, quit claimed to pl and the
heirs of Thos £240.

F of F Essex Page 97.25 Richard Fryth pl Jasper Warren gent and
wife Antonia def, 1 messauge, 1 garden, 40 acre of arable , 4
acre of meadow, 20 acre of pasture, 2 acre of wood and 3 acre of
Furze and Heath in Upminster 160 mks.

D/DPTI/368 1562 October. Thomas Luckyn and Rumbold Taverner,
gent, to lease a messuage and tenement in stock and Buttysbury
to Robert Smyth and John Hyenm.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 2

Source: Gonville & Caius College, Cambridge
Title: Annalium Collegij de Gonville et Caius a collegio condito libri duo, per
Joannem Caium unum fundatorum et custodem ejusdem 1563 pp.10-11

1563
Gonville & Caius college, Cambridge

1393

Quartum ergo socium Domine Marie de Pakenham esse dicemus, qui
precibus pro ea et domino de Hemenhall solus intendat. Dicemusque in ejus
socii subsidium et vestitum, vestitum custodis et sociorum, ac distributiones ut
vocant, datam collegio advocationem Ecclesie de Matsalle magna, annui
redditus per ea tempora quadraginta marcarum argenti, per nostra duodecim
tantum librarum. Ex quibus si demas viginti solidos Episcopo Norwicensi
annuatim solvendos pro decimis, pretium libree thuris in annos singulos
Episcopo Eliensi impendendum, et octo marcas argenti in salarium socij, et
tredecim solidos et quatuor denarios in vestitum seu liberaturam, ut vocant,
ejusdem: praterea si tollas in vestitum custodis 20° et aliorum septem
sociorum septem marcas argenti, id est singulis tredecim solidos et quatuor
denarios, exluso Doctoris Bayly socio: postremo, si eximas distributiones (ut
appellant) Custodis et cujusque novem sociorum, duodecim videlicet denarios
in festis Pascha et Nativitatis Domini, in summa viginti solidos, in universo
tredecim libras tredecim solidos quatuor denarios et amplius, totus annuus
redditus beneficij de Matsall exhaurietur, et Collegium quatuor marcarum
annuo sumptu et amplius onerabitur. Quo scire licet nihil superesse ad alterum
et secundum socium alendum. Nec est cur Collegium suo sumptu illum
secundum Domina Mariee alat: imo contra, @quius est ad exonerandum
Collegium (quod alieno sumptu gravari non debet) ut quatuor marce argenti
quatuor postremis Collegij socijs ante socium Doctoris Bayly pro liberaturis
concess, et octo solidi pro distributionibus Collegij damno eisdem elargiti
subtrahantur, qua ratione subtracti sunt Doctoris Bayly socio, videlicet, quod
liberaturee illee et distributiones concessa fuerunt tum, cum et quatuor tantum
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socij erant, nec plures futuros certo constabat. Quod autem in tertia fundatione
mentio est decem sociorum, et in visitationum libris item decem,
substitutusque ibi est Willelmus Barker, hic Andreas Person, in socium
Domine Mariee de Pakenham, cum tamen nec ille tum socius (etsi nostro
tempore) nec iste unquam fuit, ex conditione seu statu Collegij parum cognito
natum est, Cum enim cognitum fuit collegis nihil esse unde decimus aleretur
socius, et ob id non alendum judicarunt, habere tamen videri voluerunt quod
fundatum fuisse suspicati sunt. Sed Thomas Wendye et Edwardus Crome,
prior medicine alter theologie doctor, viri graves fide digni, olimque ante
nostra tempora nostri Collegij socij, et anno Domini 1560 ambo superstites,
fatebantur se suis temporibus nunquam vidisse decem socios, nec nostro
tempore nos vidisse unquam decem, etiam nos, Ricardus Taverner, Andreas
Deane, Willelmus Barker, et Willelmus Botswayn, qui ex omnibus nostri
temporibus socijs soli nunc vivimus testamur. Atque istud ausim affirmare
etiam, ante tertiam fundationem non plures fundatos quam nostro tempore
fundati sunt. Nostro autem tempore postremus fuit, qui doctoris Bayly socius
fuit, et postremus remansit usque ad tertiam fundationem. Doctor Wendie
tantum novit octo. Nonum doctor Crome primus novit, executor testamenti
Joannis Bayly, cujus socium diximus fuisse nonum. Tamen quia in postremis
fundationis literis, decem sociorum prioris temporis mentio est, decimum
Collegij socium diximus, et ejus sumptibus alendum me custode constituimus,
ut secondo libro proferemus.

1595

So we shall say that the Lady Mary of Pakenham fellow is the fourth, who
officiates on his own with prayers for her and for the lord of Hemenhall. We
shall say that for the sustenance and clothing of this fellow, the clothing of the
master and his colleagues, and the ‘distributions’ as they call them, was given
to the college the advowson of the church of Great Matsalle, of a yearly rent
at that period of 40 marks silver, in our time only £12. Of which, if you
reckon the 20s a year to be paid to the Bishop of Norwich for tithes, the cost
of a pound of incense due each year to the Bishop of Ely, and 8 marks silver
Jor the fellow’s salary, and 13s 4d for clothing or, as they call it, livery, of the
same: and moreover, if you reckon 20s for the master’s clothing and that of
the other seven colleagues 7 silver marks, that is 13s 4d each, but excepting
Dr Bayly’s fellow: finally, if you include the small distributions (as they call
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them) of the master and each of the nine fellows, to wit 12d at the feasts of
Easter and Christmas, a total of 20s, in all £13 13s 4d and more, the whole
yearly rent of the benefice of Matsall is consumed, and the college will be
burdened with 4 marks and more yearly costs: and there is nothing left over to
feed the other and further fellow. Nor is there any reason why the college
should at its own expense feed that person serving Lady Mary: on the
contrary, it would be fairer to exonerate the college (which ought not to be
burdened with any outside expenses) from the 4 marks silver granted to the
Jour last fellows of the college before Dr Bayly’s fellow for livery, and the 8s
Jor distributions paid to the same at the college’s expense should be
withdrawn, by which reason they are withdrawn from Dr Bayly’s fellow, to
wit, because those liveries and distributions were granted then when there
were only four fellows, nor was it certainly known that there would be more
in the future. But because in the third foundation there is mention of ten
Sfellows, and in the books of visitation also ten, and in the one place is entered
William Barker, in the other Andrew Person, as the fellow of Lady Mary of
Pakenham, by when neither was the former a fellow (if in our times) nor the
other ever was, it hardly arose from knowledge of the condition of the college.
For when it was realised that there was nothing with which to feed another
fellow for the college, and they decided that another should not be fed, they
wanted to discover those resources which they suspected the college to have
been founded with. But Thomas Wendye and Edward Crome, doctors of
medicine and theology respectively, grave and trustworthy men, and fellows
of our college once before our time, and both still living in 1560, used to say
that in their times they never saw ten fellows, nor in our time [1563] have we
ever seen ten, even we, Richard Taverner, Andrew Deane, William Barker
and William Botswayn, who alone of all the fellows of our time are now still
living. And let me also dare to affirm that, before the third foundation, there
were not more provided for than were provided for in our time. But in our
time was the last man who was a Dr Bayly’s fellow, and that last man stayed
until the third foundation. Only Dr Wendie knew there to be eight. Dr Crome
was the first to know nine, the executor of the will of John Bayly, whose
fellow we have said to have been the ninth. But because in the last letters of
Joundation, there is mention of ten fellows in a previous period, we have
spoken of the tenth fellow of the college, and while I was master we have
established him to eat at its expense, as we shall set out in the second book.



1563

John Taverner = Joan Perce Pinvin, Worcs IGI.
John Taverner - Cambridge Alumni born at Barking, Essex.

Rumbold Taverner - will of Geoffry Lucking (Larkin) Yeoman of
Gyng Martyne Sussex. see 1557 & 1587.

Edward Taverner son of Edward buried at stock - see 1557.

Born October 24 twins, Richard and John Taverner at Kelvedon
Hatch. Richard died May 7th 1569.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 30

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/998
Title: Patent Roll 6 Elizabeth iii m.7d

1 June 1564

Commission of the peace in county Oxford, to: Nicholas Bacon knight,
William marquess of Winchester, Henry earl of Arundel, Francis Knolles
knight (to be custos rotulorum), Vice-Chamberlain, Edward Saunders knight,
Thomas Carus serjeant &c., Richard Blounte knight, Thomas Benger knight,
Edward Umpton knight, John Doyle, Richard Fynes, Edward Asshefild,
Henry Norrys, James Mervyn, Thomas Moore, George Dakers, Anthony
Karleton, Hercules Raynsford, William Dormer, Christopher Broun, John
Denton, John Croker, John Cupper, John Billing, Thomas Gibbons,
Humphrey Ashefeld, Anthony Busterd, Richard Taverner, Thomas
Winchecombe, Robert Doyle, Thomas Lee and George Carleton.




152 - ACTS OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL  [1564

prisoner in the Gate House, before them to here what he

“coulde say to the matters objected against him, they founde

A summons |
and a letter.

p. 78.

Abstract of

letters.

p. 80.

him flatly to denye the murder, and therefore the Lordes
thought good that he shulde remaine in prisonne untill s>me
autentique matter be sene of his falte, and than the Quene
is contented he shall be delyvered, &c. ’

‘Mr. Fanshawe to be sent for to appere before the 'L\o-rdes

to morow, at oone of the clock after noone. =~
A letter to Sir Thomas Smyth, for the matter of Sir Thomas k-
Cotton, touching Delahaye. K , | *
"% 260 Septembris, 1564,

The Lord Robert Dudley. Mr. Secretary.
The Lord Admirall. Mr. Petre. E
The Lord Chamberlaine. Mr. Mason. ey
"Mr. Comptroller. : Mr. Sakefielde. 2
Mr. Vicechamberlaine. Mr. Wootton. '

To the Lord Mayour to proceade against Tavernour according »
to the lawes.

Copies to Sir William Godolpilin of Norys’ complaintes.
The Earle of Bedforde, signifyeng the sending of ijml¥ by
Dakins, Deputie Recevour of Yorkshire, to New Castell.

To the Lord Keper, with the Supplication of the Colledge
of the Phisitions, requireng his Lordship to call to him M.
Petre, Mr. Mason and Mr. Wootton, &e.

“(p. 79 s blank in the MS,)

At St. James’, the xxviijth of September, 1564.

* The Lord Thresourer. - Mr. Vicechamberlaine.
The Lord Robert Dudley. Mr. Secretary. '
The Lord Admyrall. Mr. Mason.

The Lord Chamberlayne. - Mr. Sackvyle.

“Mr. Comptroller.

* No place of meeting mentioned. The upper prtion of the page is cut off.




1564]  ACTS OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL, 18

Warrant to thexchequer to pay xlti markes to FrauncesA‘Zﬂ:::: for
Barlowe, Mr. Smythes man, for bringing of letters hither P¥™en"

from his said master from Valence in Fraunce,

Furbussher, prisoners in Launston Gaole, the charges of

..

A summons.

whose conducting is promesed by the berar hereof shaibe -

satesfied, requireng him also to deliver the said letter to
Richard Erysy.

A letter to the Mayour of TLondon returning certaine
examinations sent from him touching lewde woordes spoken
by Hugh Tavernour of London, tailour, of the Quenes
Majestie, wherein hLe is willed to procede to his poonishe-

the lawes,

A letter to Doctour Hanforde, Vicec_ha.uncellour of Cam-
bridge, Dr, Perne, Dr, Harvye, Mr, Edward Leedes of the
" same Univeljsitie,“ to Thomas Brakeu, Alexander Day, Thomas
Ventres and. Kymbold, or iiij of them, whereof twoo

of the. Universyty and twoo of the Toune, to compounde all

* Originalvmarginal note,
t This entry is made in the margin of the M,

Lewd words

* Cambridge.

Pi-racy.

An enquiry.

HPREIRG AL 1 n g o

*

fad
Soetaes s

RO e




FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 9

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1001
Title: Patent Roll 6 Elizabeth vi mm.4-6

17 May 1564

Grant to the bailiffs and freemen of Kyngeston upon Thames, county Surrey, -
for the better maintenance of Queen Elizabeth’s Grammar School there,
founded by patent, 1 March 3 Elizabeth [1561] - of the reversions and rents
of the lands (named with tenants’ names) comprised in leases by the crown for
21 years, with reservations, as follows:-

1. by indenture, 5 May 38 Henry VIII [1546], to Richard Taverner of
London, of lands in Kyngeston upon Thames;, from Michaelmas then next at
a yearly rent of £14;

2. by patent of the Court of Augmentations, 11 May 4 Edward VI [1550], to
John Good, of lands in Kyngeston upon Thames, all then in his tenure, late of
Merton priory, and then annexed to the honor of Hampton Court, county
Middlesex, from Michaelmas then next, at a yearly rent of 26s 8d.

Also grant of:- lands &c., including the premises in 1. above, in Kyngeston,
late of the Charterhouse, London; the premises in 2. above; lands &c. (named
with tenants’ names) in Kyngeston, Norbyton in Kyngeston and Talworthe in
Longdytton, county Surrey, late of the free chapel of St Mary Magdalene next
Kyngeston; and lands (tenant named) in Ham in Kyngeston, late of the
monastery of Shene, county Surrey.

Yearly value £18 9s 7d. To hold in fee farm, to wit, in socage as of the manor
of Estgrenewiche and at a yearly rent of £18 9s 7d, 20 marks yearly besides to
be spent on the maintenance of the school and the master thereof.

By privy seal.



1564

Silvester Taverner died, rector of Marston Mortaine, Beds, at
Ely, Cambridge 22.9.64 to relict Joyce. PCC Wills and Admins

Robert Taverner married Emma Beard at White Roding, Boyd DBV VI.

F of F Essex page 105.16 John Browne pl Hy Hodson and wife Anne,
Ralph Taverner and wife Joan and Alice Spurgeon, widow. def. 1
messauges, 1 garden, 1 orchard and 2 acres of meadow in Hengham
at the Castle alias Hennyngham Castell. Def, quit claimed to pl
and his heirs with a warranty of the messuages, garden, orchard
and 1/2 acre of meadow against Hy and Alice and their heirs of
Ralph and Joan and the heirs of Ralph £50.

Bridgit Taverner, also Grey of London died. PCC Admins. to
Brother and Sister, Robert Gray and Mary Kemp.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 24

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Elizabeth xxxvi 1

15 January 1565

Survey of the manor of Ernewood, county Salop, taken by Roger Taverner, by
warrant from the Marquis of Winchester, sir Richard Sakevyle and sir Walter
Mildmay.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 7

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1018
Title: Patent Roll 7 Elizabeth x m.24

19 February 1565

Lease for 30 years to Thomas Frauncys, M. D., of the rectory of Kudlington
upon le Grene, county Oxford, and the mansion house there, once of the
monastery of Osney, county Oxford; with reservations; from the termination
of a lease thereof by patent of the Court of Augmentations, 4 January 1
Edward VI [1548], to Richard Taverner, the king’s servant, at a yearly rent of
£20 for 21 years from the termination of a lease of the rectory by John Burton,
abbot, and the convent of the said monastery, by indenture, 6 February 21
Henry VIII [1530], to Robert Saunders and Alice his wife, for 21 years from
Midsummer then last at a yearly rent of £11 10s, 15 quarters of wheat and 50
quarters of malt, with a covenant that, if Robert and Alice should die during
the term, the lessors might re-enter; yearly rent £20; the lessee charged with
the tithes and other rights accustomed to be paid to the vicar there.

For his service.

By privy seal.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 8

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1013
Title: Patent Roll 7 Elizabeth v mm.24-26

28 May 1565

Grant in fee simple to William Petre knight, councillor, of the reversions and
rents of the lands comprised in leases as follows:-

1. by patent, 4 January 1 Edward VI [1548], to Richard Taverner, of the
rectory and mansion of Cudlington alias Cudlington upon the Grene, county
Oxford, for 21 years from the termination of the interest of Richard Saunders,
at a yearly rent of £20; by patent, 19 February 7 Elizabeth [1565], the
premises were leased to Thomas Fraunces for 30 years in reversion at the
same rent;

2. by patent, 24 November 7 Elizabeth [1564], to John Chamberlayne, inter
alia, of lands (tenant named) in Thorpe, county Oxford, for 21 years from
Michaelmas then last at a yearly rent of 53s 4d;

3. by patent of the Court of Augmentations, 21 December 5 Edward VI
[1551], to George Owen, the king’s servant, of the rectory of Ardington,
county Oxford, then in the tenure of Richard Andrewes, late of the monastery
of Eynsham, with reservations, for 21 years from Michaelmas then next at a
yearly rent of £7.

Also grant of the following in the county of Oxford:-

1. the said rectory of Cudlington, late of Christ Church, Oxford; worth £20 a
year;

2. the vicarage of Cudlington, now or late in the tenure of Lawrence
Atkynson; worth £3 19s 4V4d a year;

3. the said lands in Thorpe, late of the monastery of Godstowe, county
Oxford; worth 53s 4d a year;
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4. the rectory of Meriton, now or late in the tenure of Richard Gunter, worth
50s a year, and

5. the said rectory of Ardington, worth £7 a year, both late granted to
Cardinal Pole;

6. lands in Little Tewe, now or late in the tenure of William Raynsforde and
late of the monastery of Oseney, county Oxford; worth £8 13s 3d0 a year; and
7. the rectory of Southnewton, now or late in the tenure of George Gyfforde,
late granted to Cardinal Pole and formerly of Christ Church, Oxford; worth £8
a year.

Bells and lead reserved. To hold as of the manor of Estgrenewiche in socage.
Issues from Michaelmas last. The grantee charged with the following yearly
payments:

1. out of the vicarage of Cudlington, £10 to the curate there for his stipend, 6s
8d to the Bishop of Oxford and 13s 11%4d to the Archdeacon of Oxford; and
2. out of the rectory of Meriton, £9 10s 11%d to divers persons.

For £1376 11s 4'4d paid at the Exchequer to Thomas Gardiner, a teller there.
By the queen.



1565

Jennis Taverner married Joan Goodman. S. Benet Finte.
William of William Taverner Pershore, Worcs IGI.

Dec 7th Mary Taverner baptised at Kelvedon Hatch.






1566

John Taverner (will) of Ramsden Bellhouse to William Croxton,
Brother Edward, witness Thos Clarke.

Robert Taverner married Margery Ryppingham at St James,
Clerkenwell.

Hugh Taverner married Alice Raven at Mary Magdelene, Bermondsey.

Will of John Audley of Kelvedon Hatch, Labourer 10th Feb 1566/7
witnessed by Edmund Taverner.

F of F Essex page 120.15 Richard Fryth pl, George Redman gent and
wife Christiana def, 1 barn, 1 garden, 20 acres arable, 4 acres
of meadow, 10 acres pasture, 10 acres of wood and 10 acres Furze
and Heath in Upminster £20.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 1

Source: Printed

Title: Anglorum Speculum, or the Worthies of England, in Church and State.
Alphabetically digested into the several Shires and Counties therein contained,
wherein are Illustrated the Lives and Characters of the most Eminent Persons
since the Conquest to this present Age. Also an Account of the Commodities
and Trade of each Respective County, and the most flourishing Cities and
Towns therein. [George Sandys] London, 1684: 579

17 November 1568 - 16 November 1569

Oxford =shire

Noted Sheriffs.

O. Eliz.

An. 11. W. Taverner, Arm. in the year of his Sherivalty came to Oxford,

went up into the pulpit at St.Maries with a sword by his side, and a gold chain
about his neck, where he made a Sermon to the University.
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1567
William Taverner (will) Ottringham - wills at York Registry.

John Taverner husbandman of Ramsden Bellhouse 79 ER 11 Essex and

East Herts wills index, Edward my brother William Croxton
witness.

Margaret Taverner = Thos Yate at Woodeaton daughter of Richard
Taverner (W.E. Parish Registry).

Elanor Taverner married William Foster at Nasing DBV VI.

WLl st oA rrexiT — to-fb.



1568

Nicholas Taverner owned land within Aldgate and gave it to his
son Francis aged 27, 9 months 10 days on 8th December 1568.

Roberg Taverner = John Bairman at St Michael, Crooket Lane,
London - see 1595. (or 15887?)

Joan Taverner married Francis Jeffry at Castle Hedingham, Boyd
DBV IV.

John Taverner and Ann Crane, Thomas born 1568 baptised at
Norwich, Norfolk.

14th December Ann Taverner daugther of Edward Taverner baptised
at Stock.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 3

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1054
Title: Patent Roll 11 Elizabeth ii mm.30-31

20 April 1569

Lease for 21 years to John Emlyn alias Jenkyn, one of the queen’s cooks, of a
tenement and garden called le Sarsons Hed in Fletestrete in the parish of St
Dunstan in the West, London, late of the guild or brotherhood of SS. Mary
and Dunstan in the church of St Dunstan in the West; from Lady Day 1578, or
the termination of a lease by William Peghan, citizen and grocer of London,
master of the brotherhood, and Richard Allen and Reginald Conygrane,
citizens and merchant taylors of London, wardens of the same, by indenture
28 April 30 Henry VIII [1538], to Richard Taverner of London, of the
premises (between a tenement belonging to the dean and canons of the chapel
of St Stephen in the palace of Westminster, then in the tenure of John Cook,
on the east, a tenement belonging to the brotherhood, then in the tenure of
Thomas Brooke, on the west, a garden belonging to the Mistery of Goldsmiths
of London on the north, and a tenement belonging to the brotherhood, then
inhabited by John Albright talughchaundeler and James Studd, on the south)
for 40 years from Lady Day then last, at a yearly rent of £9; same rent.

For his service.

By privy seal.



1569

Joan Taverner = John Corbet of Kelvedon Hatch Boyd DBV VI.
Margaret Taverner christened Pershore Holy X IGI Worcs.

Also at Kelvedon Hatch Richard Taverner buried (see 1563) 7th
May.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 25

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Elizabeth 1xxv 54

[1570?]
A device for the remedying of some part of the inconveniences which daily
grow in the realm by usury and dry exchange. Proposing the establishment of

the office of Royal Exchanger.

[endorsed:]1 Mr Taverner




1570

Bridgitta Taverner buried High Roding, Essex. ref. Parish
Records.
Mary Taverner of John Taverner Pershore IGI Worcs.

Jacob Taverner = Gracia Russel, Katherina born 1570.

William Taverner Bridford - Devon.
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1571

John Taverner, entry 1571 Mag Coll Oxford, Rector of Woodeaton
1575 d. 1577.

Mary Harcourt = Richard Taverner 17th July 1571 of Woodeaton son
Harcourt Taverner and daughter Penelope baptised 8.9.1566 later
she re-married Cromwell Lee.

F of F Essex 161.19 Humphrey Tabor pl Emma Gytton, widow 10 acres
of arable, 3 acre of meadow, 8 acres pasture and 4 acres of wood
and a fourth part of 4 tofts, 20 acres arable, 89 acres of
meadow, 20 acres of pasture and 6 acres of wood in Margaretting
£40.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 28

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Elizabeth Addenda xxi 11

18 January 1572
Westminster

Grant to John son of Roger Taverner of the reversion after sir Francis Jobson,
whose deputy Roger now is, of the office of surveyor of woods belonging to
the Court of Augmentations, north of the Trent; fee, £50 a year.

[endorsed:]

Like grant to Thomas Morgan.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 2

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1083
Title: Patent Roll 14 Elizabeth ii m.6

28 January 1572

Grant for life to John Taverner son of Roger Taverner, of the reversion of the
office of Surveyor of Woods of the Crown South of the Trent, and of all
woods south of the Trent of the ancient inheritance of the crown, which office
was granted to Francis Jobson knight for life by patent, 4 September 4 Edward
VI [1550]; with all emoluments customarily belonging thereto, except an
annuity of £100 granted with the office to Jobson; yearly wages of £50,
payable at the Exchequer. Jobson holds the office by the said Roger, his
deputy.

By privy seal.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 27

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Elizabeth: Miscellaneous viii ff.61-62

[30 June 1572]

The arguments exhibited by the Lord Keeper, sir Nicholas Bacon, in
parliament, proving the noblemen’s persons to be attachable for contempt
committed by them in the queen’s Majesty’s court of Chancery, disobeying
the decrees in that court; which came in question upon an attachment ordered
out of the same court to the Sheriff of Norfolk, to attach the body of the Lord
Cromwell, for disobeying a decree made in the said court, between one
[James] Taverner, plaintiff, and the said Lord Cromwell, defendant, which
attachment [was] so executed by the said sheriff, and the body of the said
Lord Cromwell brought prisoner in the said court of Chancery.



1572

Humphrey and Eleen Taverner 2 Messuages - Bp. Hatfield.

Joan Taverner and Mathew Smartwood, Tamworth IGI Staffs.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 19

Source: Printed

Title: Reports of Cases in the reigns of Hen. VIII., Edw. VI., Q. Mary, and
Q. Eliz., taken and collected by Sir James Dyer, Knt., some time Chief
Justice of the Common Pleas. Now first translated, with Additional
References to the latest Books of Authority, and marginal abstracts of the
points determined in each case. By John Vaillant, M. A., of the Inner Temple,
Barrister-at-Law. In Three Parts. Part I. 1794: 729-731

Easter 1573
EASTER TERM, 15 QUEEN ELIZABETH.
TAVERNER’S CASE.

Forging the customary of a manor which tends to the disherison of the lord,
and affixing seals to it, is within 5 Eliz. c. 14.

And, in a suit for that in the star chamber, the crown may pardon the corporal
punishment without the party releasing.

The execution for the double costs and damages is by English writ, directed to
the sheriff, of the goods, chattels, and profits of the lands of the offender,

(26)

James Taverner, being a copyholder to the Lord Crumwell of his manor of
Northeltham in the county of Nor. made a customary in Latin of the said
manor on parchment, with eleven labels and seals of his own and other tenans
of the manor, inserting therein divers customs, very false, tending opebly to
the disherison of the lord, and pretending by the title of the said customary, to
be collected, renewed, and set forth by the consent of all the freeholders and
copyholders of the manor, being in number 100 at least, and allowed and
permitted by the lord of the manor: and in the conclusion, “in witness whereof
the eleven (whose names were subscribed), have put their seals the dat and
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year above said.” But no day or year appeared in the title, and no consent of
all the tenants, or allowance of the lord in fact had. And the seals were very
strange, for to each seal there was a large square seal engraven about
Northeltham, and the particular seal less within that; by which as it seems the
intent was to prove the affirmance of the lord f with the consent of all the
tenants &c. And this was proved in Taverner to be done wittingly, subtilly,
and falseley, and to the intent &c. Whether this be a forgery punishable by the
statute of the fifth year of the present queen [c. 14.] (this act being committed
in the ninth year of the present queen [17 November 1566 - 16 November
1567]) was doubted, and referred by the lords to the considerations of all the
Judges; whose opinions for the major part were reported by the two Chief
Justices, that it was a forgery, or falsifying, punishable by the open and
shameful penance contained in the statute; which expressly speaks of a writing
sealedu, as this was, and fo the intent to benefit themselves, and to disinherit
the lord. And accordingly the judgment and decree was pronounced this term
by a solemn presence, the lord keeper &c. being absent by infirmity.

(28)

And for the execution of double costs and damages recovered by the taxation
of the Court, it was doubted what manner and form of process should be
made: and after a conference thereupon had between all the judges of both
benches, and the chief baron, it was resolved, that an English writ should be
made, and directed to the sheriff of Nor. reciting the conviction, and the
statute for the livery of the said costs and damages of the goods, chattels, and
profits of the lands of Taverner, and to bring the money into the star-chamber,
the writ to be sealed with the great seal, and the teste or witness, the queen, as
is usual in similar writs in the chancery.

After this communication and judgment in the star-chamber, the queen
pardoned the execution of the corporal punishment. Whether that be good
without obtaining the release of the party also? Quere the intent of the statute
of the fifth year of the now queen c. 14. Note, the preamble strongly penned
to encrease the punishment of forgery. Also the body of the act s. that the
party grieved shall recover double costs and damages, and that the offender
shall suffer upon the pillory the corporal penance &c. And also shall forfeit to
the queen the profits of his lands, but the plaintiff to be first satisfied &c.
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Also, if the offender hath once suffered the corporal punishment, he shall not
be eftsoons impeached &c. Also, if the offender be convicted, the plaintiff
cannot release, or discontinue the punishment &c. but only costs and damages
&c. And afterwards s. in the next Michaelmas Term it was holden by Wray
chief justice, Saunders chief baron, Harper and Manwood justices, besides
Bartham, and Gerrarde attorney, that the queen may pardon the corporal
penance which trenches to the common example &c. But Dyer, Southcote,
and Mounson, é contra.

[Trin. Jac. in the Bench Lord Coke said, that it was resolved by him and
Popham, [13. Co. 64.] that if costs be assessed in the chancery, or star-
chamber, the party upon refusal cannot be fined, or executors charged, but the
person only is liable.

Trin. 41. Eliz. Popham said, that if a party hath recovered in forgery by false
deeds, the king cannot pardon the corporal punishment, as he may where it is
prosecuted in the star-chamber.

V. Biggen’s case, 5. Co. 50. b. [Mo. 571. Cro. Eliz. 682. But by 16. Car. I.
c. 10. § 3. the court of star-chamber is taken away.]



1574

James Taverner 5th son of John of North Elmham.

Possessor of North Elmham mar sole daughter of Russell of Wighton
in Norfolk (the relict of Edward Bedingfield by his mother, the
sole daugther of Giggs of Wighton which James was father of Thos
who held lands in North Elmham.

Christopher Taverner husbandman of Stanford Rivers 51 ER 13. (see
1552) .

Edmund Taverner of Kelvedon Hatch buried October 20th.

(1567 Will of John Audley of K.H. Essex Labourer witness Edmund
Taverner.

1567 Will of John Taverner of Ramden Bellhouse - Edmund Taverner
brother, William Croxton.

1561 Will of Richard Making of Barking. Edmund Taverner
overseer) .
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 10

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1132
Title: Patent Roll 17 Elizabeth x mm.33-34

5 July 1575

Lease for 60 years to Roger Taverner, the queen’s servant, of a water mill
called Purflete Milles, county Essex, and lands (named) near the same and in
West Thorock, county Essex, now or late in the tenure of John Eston, once of
the hospital of St John of Jerusalem in England; with reservations, including a
cottage &c. (tenant named); from Lady Day last; yearly rent £13 6s 8d; the
crown to discharge the lessee against divers persons of 100s out of the manor
of Purflete; the lessee may change the form of lez fludyates as shall seem best
to him; the lessee shall bear all charges and payments assessed by order of the
commissioners of sewers.

In consideration that lez fludyates of the mills are in great ruin and Taverner
offers to maintain them in repair.

By warrant of the commissioners.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 18

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Ancient Deeds A 12992

26 October 1575

Deed poll by Edmund Caman [signs: Edmound Caman], citizen and fruterer
of London, and Joan his wife [marks], late the wife of Robert Pursell of
London fruterer; reciting that by his letters patent 29 November 2 Edward VI
[1548], the king granted to Silvester Taverner and John Hynde, a close of 6
acres called Chauntery Garden, in the parish of Tenham, late belonging to the
chantry there, between the highway on the south, land of John Kyte on the
east and north, and land of the archbishop of Canterbury on the west, and a
parcel of land of 2 acres late in the tenure of John Derton, in Tenham in
Courte Feld, late belonging to the said chantry, abutting on land of the
archbishop on the west and south, land of John Norden on the north and land
of John Kyte on the east; and reciting that Taverner and Hynde, by their
writing 23 February 3 Edward VI [1549], gave the premises to the said Robert
Pursell; reciting also that Margaret Ingram of Westham, county Essex, by her
writing, 15 May 3 Edward VI [1549], sold to the said Robert Pursell a garden
in Tenham between his land on the north, east and south and the highway
from Tenham to Lynsted on the west; and reciting that the said Robert Pursell,
being thus in possession, by his testament dated 17 April 3 Elizabeth [1561],
gave all the said land to the said Joan, then his wife, for the term of her life
only; bargain and sale, and feoffment, by the said Edmund and Joan to
William Hore of London yeoman, of her life estate therein; attorneys to
deliver seisin, John Merryfield, fishmonger, and George Wylton,
tallowchaundeler, citizens of London, and James Newnam, of London,
yeoman.

26 October 17 Elizabeth [1575]

Memorandum of livery of seisin 15 February 18 Elizabeth [1576]
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 14

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1138
Title: Patent Roll 18 Elizabeth 11 m.3

3 November 1575

Presentation of John Taverner to the rectory of Wodeyton, Oxford diocese.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 1

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1138
Title: Patent Roll 18 Elizabeth ii m.3

23 November 1575

Presentation of John Taverner to the rectory of Wodeyton, Oxford diocese.
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1575
Richard & Isabella Burke, Pirton IGI Worcs.

Richard Taverner died at Woodeaton, Canterbury Wills 32
Pyckering.

James Taverner of North Elmham 5th son of John.

John Taverner Married Alse Frith at Upminster.

James Taverner married Elizabeth Cockes at St James Clerken Well.
Thomas Taverner married Alice Butts at Barking, Boyd DBV IV.
Lucy Taverner married Thomas Brakin of Cambridge.

John Taverner of Spalding-in-Holland

Lucy William
Ann of William Taverner, Pershore, Worcs IGI.

Mabelye Taverner - spinster Hamshed, Devon.




1576

Kent. 15th Feb 1576 Silvester Taverner owned lands by letters
patent 29th November 1549 a close 6 acres called Chantery Gardens
in Tenham etc and 2 acres of land called Courte Field. Sold on
23rd February 1550 to Robert Pursell. Ancient Deeds Vol IV.

1576 Will, Worcester (1451-1600). 24th April John Taverner of
Pynton, Per Ann Hill, Cradley, Hereford.

Amy Taverner married Peter Woodcock at Clavering Boyd DBV VI.

Elizabeth of John Taverner Pershore Holy x Worcs IGI.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 44

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1154
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth iv m.4

1 May 1577

Licence to Thomas Taverner to alienate lands in Lamborne, county Essex, to
Charles Newcombe and Thomas Parker and the heirs and assigns of
Newcombe.

For 10s.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 43

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1154
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth iv m.20

5 June 1577

Pardon of alienation: Nicholas Lesse of London draper, by indenture, 25
November 17 Elizabeth [1574], granted to Simon Burton waxchaundeler,
Richard Allen mercer, and Mark Warner draper, citizens of London, William
Tucker of Bristol draper and George Snegge of the same, merchant, a house
in the parish of St Catherine Christchurche commonly called Creechurche
within Algate, London, with a garden, a shop and all other appurtenances
thereof (abutting to the east on lands of the fishmongers of London, to the
west on lands of the late prior of Halliwell, to the north on the highway and to
the south on lands of the late abbot of Eyvesham), now in the tenure of Lesse,
having been purchased by him from Francis Taverner of Writtle, county
Essex, son and heir of Nicholas Taverner late of Writtle, to hold unto the said
grantees to the use of Lesse and Agnes his wife for life in survivorship, with
remainder to the heirs and assigns of the survivor.

For 40s paid to the queen’s farmer.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 46

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1155
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth 111 m.29

20 June 1577

Pardon of alienation: Richard Taverner of Woodeton, county Oxford, being
seised of the manor of Woodeton alias Woodeton Mylton and the manor of
Soundes, county Oxford, and lands in Kingeston on Thames, county Surrey,
called Hartington, by his will, 15 June 17 Elizabeth [1575], bequeathed to his
sons, Peter Taverner and Edmund Taverner, a third part each of all his lands;
after Richard’s death Edmund entered upon a third part of the premises.

For £3 6s 8d.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 47

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1155
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth iii m.30

20 June 1577

Pardon of alienation: Richard Taverner of Woodeton, county Oxford, being
seised of the manor of Woodeton alias Woodeton Mylton and the manor of
Soundes, county Oxford, and lands in Kingeston on Thames, county Surrey,
called Hartington, by his will, 15 June 17 Elizabeth [1575], bequeathed to his
sons, Peter Taverner and Edmund Taverner, a third part each of all his lands;
after Richard’s death Peter entered upon a third part of the premises.

For £3 6s 8d.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 11

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1153
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth 111 m.31

22 June 1577

Licence for Edmund Taverner to alienate a third part of lands in Hartington,
county Surrey, to Peter Taverner.
For 33s 4d paid to the queen’s farmer.




FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 12

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1153
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth iii m.31

22 June 1577

Licence for Peter Taverner to alienate a third part of the manor of Sowndes,
county Oxford, to Edmund Taverner.
For 33s 4d.




FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 13

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1153
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth iii m.27

22 June 1577
Licence for Richard Taverner to alienate a third part of a messuage in

Hartington, county Surrey, to Peter Taverner.
For 33s 4d.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 45

Source: Public Record Office: C 66/1155
Title: Patent Roll 19 Elizabeth 111 m.29

22 June 1577
Licence for Richard Taverner to alienate a third part of the manor of

Sowndes, county Oxford, to Edmund Tavernor.
For 33s 4d.




1577

John Taverner Gent, Oxford. Probate Records bishop and
archdeacon of Oxford, 185.523 wife Isabell, son of Richard,
Rector of W.E. 1575.

F of F Essex 213.26 Charles Newcombe gent, and Thos Parker gent,
pl Thos Taverner gent, def. 5 acres of meadow and 6 acres of
pasture in Lambourne. Def. quit claimed to pl and the heirs of
Charles £30.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 8

Source: Hatfield House Library: RCHM ix ii 203
Title: Salisbury Manuscripts 594

18 September 1578
Berwick Ponds

Letter: Roger Taverner to lord Burghley
The Forest of Roche

Certifies that in the 8th year of Elizabeth [17 November 1565 - 16 November
1566] a commission was directed to divers gentlemen of Somerset to survey
what woods of her Majesty were in every forest of her Highness in that
county. The return was that her Majesty had no woods to the same forest
belonging. Since that time writer had searched all such records as he could
find, for any wood-sale or any pawnage within the forest, but found nothing
answered for. Had traced certain small amercements that had been answered,
but no such amercements had been now answered for a long time, except only
deer for the household. Sir Henry Portman dwelleth nigh the forest, and
probably knows the state thereof.



1578

Isabel Taverner = Richard Lyme

* widow of London or Line
St Nicholas Acons

* See John Taverner died 1577.

F of F Essex 218.2 Nicholas Taber pl, John Pathe and wife Joan
def 1 barn and 1 acre of arable in Runwell £40.

St Giles, Cripplegate 26th January 1578 James Reade married
Elizabeth Taverner.

John Taverner, Trinity College, Cambridge S. M. 1578 AB. 1584 AM
1588 Mat & Degrees (see 1558).

D/DL 673, 714 June 12th. Marriage settlement between Sir Walter
Mildmay and Edmund Barrett for the marriage of Charles Barrett
to Christian Mildmay - metions marsh grounds in Wennington an the
West side of Wennington Creek, sometimes called Celies in the
occupation of Roger and John Taverner, gentlemen.

October 5 1618 a further document concerning the marriage
settlement which mentions the same piece of land. This time in
the occupation of John Taverner alone.




1579
Joan Taverner married William Dange at Chigwell Boyd DBV VI.

Judeth Taverner married Anthony Gates St Martins, Pomeray.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 42

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/22/6 mm.5,35,97
Title: Croydon Assizes

10 March 1580
Croydon

William Hill of Kingston upon Thames yeoman, indicted for grand larceny.
On 17 October 1579 he broke into the house of Richard Tavener esquire at
Kingston upon Thames, and stole 6 bushels of wheat (worth 12s).

On 24 October 1579 before Thomas Lyfield, justice of the peace, Richard
Tavener of Kingston upon Thames gentleman entered a recognizance to give
evidence against Hill, and on 9 December 1579 before Thomas Lyfield and
Thomas Vincent, justices of the peace, Thomas Chrowcher of St George,
Southwark, tailor, and John Hill of Kingston upon Thames husbandman,
entered recognizances for Tavener’s appearance.

At large.

Tried in July 1580 and found guilty: allowed benefit of clergy.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 33

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Patent Roll 22 Elizabeth ix m.3d

1 June 1580
Commission for Roger Younge, Edward Marten, Edward Tavenor, escheator,

and Thomas Noke, feodary, to enquire after the death of Henry Beake in
Berkshire.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 32

Source: Public Record Office
Title: Patent Roll 22 Elizabeth ix m.27d

19 February 1580

Commission for Henry Nevell and John Fetiplace, knights, Thomas Parry,
Richard Hurleston, Edward Taverner, escheator, and Thomas Noke, feodary,
(or four of them including the escheator and feodary) to enquire after the death
of William Norrys, in Berkshire.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 43

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/22/5 m.74
Title: Croydon Assizes

18 July 1580
Croydon

Justices of the Peace

Edmund archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burghley

Edward earl of Lincoln

Thomas earl of Sussex

Anthony viscount Montague

John Lumley lord Lumley

William Burgh lord Burgh

Charles Howard lord Howard

Sir Francis Walsingham

John Southcote, justice sworn
Thomas Gawdy, justice sworn
John Birch, baron

Sir Henry Weston

Sir Francis Carew

Sir Thomas Brown sworn
Bartholomew Clerk dean of London
sworn

Edward Fenner serjeant

William Howard sworn
William Fleetwood recorder of London
Anthony Crane

Robert Fourth, LI. D. sworn
John Wolley
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Thomas Powle clerk of the Crown

Nicholas Lee
Gregory Lovell
Thomas Marriott
Thomas Pinner
Thomas Lyfield
John Skinner
Edmund Slyfield
Barnard Randolph
Thomas Vincent
William Morgan
Henry Harvey
John Scott
Edward Moor
John Reed
George Moor
Richard Bostock
John Cooper
Robert Livesey
Richard Burton
Lawrence Stoughton
Richard Brown
Edward Bellingham
Edmund Bowyer
William Gardener
Henry Slyfield
Richard Taverner

Sworn

Sworn
Sworn

sworn
sworn
sworn
ill

sSworn

sworn
sworn
sworn
sworn
sworn
sworn
sworn
oill

sworn

ill
sworn




Deposition of Thomas Knot

PRO ref C24/49

Tho[mas] Knot of London, gent, of th'age of 33 yeres or theraboutes, sworne and
examyned the 8th daie of February in the yere abovesaid, deposeth and sayth by vertue of his
othe,

To the first Inter{rogatory],

Th{a]t he supposeth verely th{a]t the lymytac[i]Jon of 24 yeres of one mesuage called
Barrowe and dyvers landes in Wryttle, late the said John Wildes, upon the state thereof, made
to Tho. Chalk and John Sandford and their heires, to th'use of John Wood and the said Henry
Wild, for the said 24 yeres, was upon very trust, [deleted: "and upon their promesse For tha]t
the said Henry Wild, after the comunycac[i]on betweene hym and John Wild, came to this
depon([en]t and shewed hym the wrytinges betwixt hym and John Wood and Edmund Taverner,
to th'intent that upon the sight therof this depon[en]t shuld draw certeyne covenalu]ntes betwixt
the said John Wood and Henry Wild, and John Wild, concerning the same landes. Th'effecte of
wihijch Covena[u]ntes"] and upon their promesses, that during those 24 yeres the said John
Wild during his lief, and after his death his wief, and after their death the Children of the same
John Wild, shuld be relieved w{i]t[h] the [w]hole proffettes of the p[re]mysses,

For that he hath sene an Indenture made betwene the said Henry [deleted: "Taver"]
Wild and John Wood and Edmund Taverner purporting the same effect.

To the 2. Int{errogatory] he sayth,

Tha]t true it is th{a]t after the the returne of the said John Wild in to Essex in the tyme
of the quenes ma[jes]ties reigne that now is, the same John Wood and Henry Wild did agree
and promesse to the same John Wild th[a]t he shuld have suche reasonable assuraunce of the
p[re]misses during the residue of the said 24 yeres, if he did lyve so long, as he wold
reasonablie devise,

So as the same Jo. Wild wold be bounde to them to save them harm[el]es concerning
the Coven|[au]ntes and bondes as they had made to and w{i]t{h] the said Edm[u]nde Taverner,
in th{a]t behalf, and that they wold suffer the said Jo. Wild quyetly to enter into the p[re]misses
at Mychaelmas then next ensewing, w[hi]ch was Mychaelmas last past.

This he k[nowe]th to be true for th{a]t he lately h{e]ard both the said [deleted: "John"]
Henry Wild and [deleted: "Henry"] John Woodd so confesse and report at suche tyme as they
came to this depon[en]t to have hym to draw certayne coven{ajuntes betwene them and the said
John Wild touching the same agre[e]m[en]t, who according to the request of the same John
Wood and Henry Wild did drawe the same,

Att wlhi]ch tyme, when he had drawen them and shewed them unto the same John Wood
and Henry Wylde, the same Henry Wild did somewhat myslike [mislike, dislike] the same, for
th{a]t he thought he shuld not thereby have be[e]n saved harmeles [deleted: "of the"] for the
said Coven[au]ntes betwene them and the same Edmund Taverner.

And yet nevertheles the coven[au]ntes did rnn[n]e to the effect th[a]t if the said John
Wild shuld dye before the said Terme of 24 yeres were expired or [deleted: "did"] th{a]t the
same John Wild shuld do any thing contrary to the coven{au]ntes [deleted: betwene"] expressed
and conteyned in the said Indenture made between the said John Wood & Henry Wild and the
said Edm[u]nd Taverner, That then it shuld be lefull to the said John Wood and ...



Deposition of Edmund Taverner

PRO ret' C24/49

Edmunde Taverner of Barking in the County of Essex, yeoman, of th'age of 33 yeres or
theraboutes, sworne and examyned the 7 day of February in the yere abovesaid, deposeth and
sayth by vertue of his othe,

To the first Inter{rogatory|

[deleted: "That he cannot depose. To the 2 Inter{rogatory| he deposeth that”]
[before amendment]

That the said John Wild did make an estate of one mesuage called Barrowe and dyvers
landes in Wryttle, late the said John Wildes, to Tho. Chalk and Jo. Sandford and their heires
[deleted: "wherein a lymitac[ijJon of"] for the terme of 24 yeres [deleted: "was made”], to
th'use of John Wood and Henry Wild for the said terme, y[i]elding therefore yerely to the said
Jo. Wild and his wief for terme of their lives and the longer liver of them the rent of £12, And
after their deceasse to this dep[onent] or his executors or assignes, to the use of the Children of
the same John Wild, £12 of laufull money, w{i]t[h] dyvers other covenafu]ntes conteyned in the
said dede.

[after amendment]

That the lymytac[iJon of 24 yeres of therein one mesunage called Barrowe and dyvers
landes in Wryttle, late the said John Wildes, upon the state thereof, to Tho. Chalk and Jo.
Sandford and their heires, to th'use of John Wood and Henry Wild, for the said term of 24
yeres, was made upon very trust, and upon their promesse that during the said terme the said
Jo. Wild and his wief for terme of their lives and the longer liver of them, And after their
deceasse the children of the same John Wild, shuld be releved w{i]t[h] the [w]hole p[ro]fittes
of the p[re]misses.

To the 2. Inter{rogatory] he sayth,
That after the the returne of the said John Wild in to Essex in the tyme of the quenes

ma[jes]ties reigne that now is, the same John Wood and Henry Wild did agree and promesse
the same John Wild th[a]t [deleted: "Jo. Wild"] he shuld have suche reasonable assuraunce of
the p[re]jmisses during the residue of the said 24 yeres as he [deleted: "shuld"] wold
reasonablie devise, So as he wold be bounde to save them harmeles concerning suche
covena|u]ntes and bondes as they had made to and w{i]t{h] the deponent on that behalf

And that they wold suffer the same John Wild quyetly to enter in to the p[re]misses at
Mychaelmas then next ensewing wlhi]ch was in the first yere of the reigne of ofu]r sovereigne
La[dy] the quene th{a]t now ys.

This he knoweth to be true for that he was [deleted: "requyred to be"] present at
Wryttell aforesaid when the same promesse and agreem[en]te was made and there was also
present the said John Wood and Wm. Taverner, brother to this deponent.

And thereby this deponfent] also remembreth th[a]t upon the conclusion of the said
bargayne the said Jo Wold did d[eliver] to the said Henry Wild 2d as in ernest.

To the 3 Inter{rogatory] he sayth,

Thia]t he did he[a]re yt reported that the same Henry Wild did afterwardes swarve
[swerve] from the same his agre[e]m[en]t and promesse, [and refiused] to make any
assurafu]nce of the p[re]misses to the same Jo. Wild accordingly.

This he knowe]th to be true for that he, this deponfen]t, did labofulr to hym in that
behalf'to p[er]forme his said p[ro]messe to the said John Wild, who refuced so to do.



Deposition of Edmund Taverner cont'd

To the 4 & 5th Inter{rogatory] he sayth,

Thla]t he h[e]ard it creadebly [credibly] reported that the said Henry Wild, after long
intreaty & sute to hym made by the said John Wild, afterwardes oft times did agree and
faithfully promesse, on or [a]bout the 26th day of Septemb[er] in the said yere, to and w{i]th
the said John Wild, th[a]t in considerac[iJon of £12 the same John Wild shuld quyetly enter in
to the p[re]misses at Mychaelmas aforesaid,

And that he shuld have a sufficient lease therof in wryting from the same Henry Wild
from the same Fe[a]st to th'end of 22 yeres then next ensewing, for the yerely rent of 2d, to be
paid at the Fe[a]stes of Th'annunc[iation] of the blessed lady the Virgyne & St Mychaell
th'archangell by even porc[i]ons, w{i]t[h] a clause of re-entry for none paym[en]t thereof if it
were demanded at the said mesuage.

And wfi]th a further condic[i]on therin to be conteyned, that if the said John Wild shuld
breke any covena[u]nt graumt or condic[i]on mencyoned in the Indenture made betweene the
said John Wood and Henry Wild and this depo[nen]t on the behalf of the said John Wood and
Henry Wild to be performed, or if the said John Wild shuld fortune to dye during the same
terme of 22 yeres, that then it shuld be lefull [lawful] to the same Henry Wild to re-entre.

And this depon[en]t hath heard it reported that one Knot was requyred to make the said
conveyaunce [deleted: "for"] of the same lease, wlhi]ch lease the same Knot did accordingly
make, wlhi]ch said lease this depon[en]t hath sene also and redd, and was also a travelor to the
said Henry Wild to have it by hym sealed and d[elivere]d.

To the 6 Int{errogatory] he sayth,
That it was also further agreed th[a]t the said Henry Wild should retayne to his owne

use, in considerac|i]on of the said lease, £12 whi]ch was payable to the same John Wild at the
said Mychaelmas by vertue of the said Indenture made betweene the said Jo. Wood & Henry
Wild & this depon[enl]t,

And he also remembreth th{a]t yt was agreed also betweene the same Jo. Wood &
Henry Wild and the said John Wild, th{a]t the same Henry Wild should, in considerac[i]Jon of
the same lease, have and hold, for terme of one [w]hole vere, one barme and a stable,
w(i]t{h]out any thing paieng for the same,

And shuld have also, for one whole yere, a pece of land called Tanners Land, p[ar]cell
of the p[re]misses, payeing therfore to the said Jo. Wild, his executors or assignes, 26s 8d, and
also 2 other p[ar]celles of land, p[ar]cell of the p[re]misses, called 7 acres and Fridayes
[deleted: "pay"] for terme of 6 yeres, payeing therfore to the said John Wild, his executors and
assignes, 20s yerely,

And he remembreth th{a]t in considerac[ijJon of the same covena[u]ntes to be
p[erjformed the said Henry Wild did geve John Wild 2d as in ernest.

To the 7 Int{errogatory] he cannot certinly depose,

But he hath h[e]ard that the said John Wild saye that in hope of the p[er]forma[u]nce of
the said agreme[n]tes he did discharg hymself of a t[ene]m[en]te in Sufffolk] w{hi]ch he had
taken, and by th'occasion th[a]t the said H. Wilde wold not suffer hym to entoye [in error for
"enjoye” or "entrye"?] the said mesuage and premisses called Barrowe, was destitute of a
convenient dwelling home.




Deposition of Edmund Taverner cont'd

To the 8th Int{errogatory] he cannot depose.

To the 9. Int[er]rogatory he deposeth,
Thfa]t true it is th{a]t the said John Wild, in hope of the p[erjformaunce of the said

agrem(en]tes, did plough upon the groundes belonging to the said mesuage or farme called
Barrowe, but how moche he tilled there this depon[en]t k[nowe]th not, nor can tell what chardg
he did susteyne in tilling of the same groundes, nor more or otherwise he can depose in this

behalf.
by me Edm[u]nde Taverner




Deposition of William Taverner

PRO ref C24/49

W(illiajm Taverner of Wryttle in the County of Essex, . h . [?husbandman], of th'age of
40 yeres or there aboutes, sworne and examyned the day and yere abovesaid, deposeth and
sayth by vertue of his othe,

To the first Inter{rogatory]
That he [deleted: "cannot depose”] knowe]th nothing.

To the second Inter{rogatory] he deposeth,

That after the the returne of the said John Wild in to Essex in the tyme of the quenes
ma[jes]ties reigne that now ys, this deponf[ent] and others were p[re]sent when the said
[deleted: "Hen"] John Wood and Henry Wild did agree and promesse to the saide John Wild
th{a]t he shuld have all their right and title in and to [deleted: "the p[re]misses"] a messuage
called Barrowe and dyvers other landes in Wryttell, late the said John Wildes, for the some of
£12 in money, and that the same John Wild wold save them harmeles concerning suche
covena[ulotes and bondes as they had made to and w{i]t{h] one Edm[u]lnd Taverner, this
depon[en]tes brother.

And also yt was agreed betwene them that [deleted: "in conderac[i]on that"] the said
Henry Wild shuld, in considerac[i]on therof, have a pece of land called [deleted: "7 acres"]
Tanners landes, p[ar]cell of the p[re]misses of the said John Wild, for terme of one [w]hole
yere, paieng therefore to the said John Wild 26s 8d, and also 2 other peces of land, p[ar]cell of
the p[re]misses, called 7 acres and Fridayes, for terme of 6 yeres, payeng therefore to the said
John Wild, his executors or assignes, 20s.

And also one barne and a stable for one yere w{i]thout any thing payeing,

And in these respectes yt was fully agreed that the said John Wild shuld quyetly enter in
to the p[re]misses at Mychaelmas then next foloing, w{hi]ch was in the first yere of the reigne
of o[u]r sovereigne La[dy] the quene th{a]t now ys.

And therupon the said John Wild and Henry Wild did either of them geve 2d to other as
an ernest of their aggrem|[en]t.

To the 3 Inter{rogatory] he deposeth,

Thia]t true it is th[a]t the said Henry Wild did afterward swarve from the same his
agre[e]m[en]t and promesse, and refused to make any assuraunce of the p[re]misses to the same
Jo. Wild accordingly.

To the 4 Inter{rogatory] he sayth,

Thla]t he h[e]ard yt creadebly reported th[a]t, after long intreaty and sute to the said
Henry Wild made by the said John Wild, the same Henry Wild did faythfully promisse that the
said Jo. Wild shuld have of hym a lease of the p[re]jmisses, but what rent shuld bee reserved
upon the same lease, or for what terme, he knowe]th not, nor to his remembrance hath h[e]ard
it reported, nor knoweth about what tyme the same p[ro]messe of the said lease was made, nor
k{nowe]th what cof venajuntes were or shuld be conteyned in the same.



Deposition of William Taverner cont'd

To the 5 Inter{rogatory],

He likewise hath h[e]ard it reported creadebly that the said Henry Wild did therupon
appoynt an Indenture to be made of lease according to the same agre[e]m[en]t and that he did
appoynt and require ope Knot to make the same Indenture, who made it accordingly.

[deleted: "To the 6th Inter{rogatory] he is ignorant"]

And after it was so made this depon[ent] happened to be present at suche tyme as the
said Knot brought the same lease to the said Henry Wild to have hym seale it, who utterly
refuced to seale the same.

And this depon[en]t hath h[e]ard the said Knot say that he had made yt no otherwise
then according to the said Henries Wildes owne Instrucc[i]ons and agre[e]m{en]t.

To the 6th & 7th Inter{rogatory],
He is ignorant.

To the 8th & 9th,
He [deleted: "deposeth"] supposeth in his conscience th{a]t the said John Wild did
[deleted: "till"] susteyne, in Some Tilling of p[ar]te of the groundes belonging to the said

mesuage called Barrowe, the charge of 26s 8d. And more or otherwise he can not depose in
this behalf’



Deposition of William Taverner of Writtle

PRO ref C24/49

William Taverner of Wiyttell in the County of Essex, of th'age of 40 yeres or
theraboutes, sworne and examyned the day and yere abovesaid, deposeth and sayth by vertue of
his othe [oath],

To the first Interrogatory, that he knoweth a messuage called Barrow, with
th'appurtenances, set, lyeing and being in Wryttell aforesaid, now in varyance betwene the said
plar]ties, very well.

To the 2. Int. he deposeth that he hath heard it creadebly reported, and supposeth in his
conscience, that yt is true that the said Jo. Wild was fully content and agreed that the said Henry
should have the said messuage & other the premisses for terme of 24 yeres.

To the 3 Int. he deposeth he is ignorant.

To the 4 Int. he deposeth that for any thing he knoweth to the contrary, the lease made by
the said John Wild th'elder unto the said Harry Wild was of his owne mere motion.

To the 5. Int. he sayth he hath not knowen the said messuage & other the premisses [to]
be at any [time] before that letten, And therefore to this Interrogatory he can not certainly
depose. Nevertheless he supposeth in his conscience the same were at the tyme made to the
said Henry Wild worth to be letten about a £15 by yere and so he knew dyvers wold have
geven for the same willingly.

To the 6. Int. he sayth that he hath heard some comunycacion and promesses afterward
made & said betwixt the said Harry Wild & the said Jo. Wild for & concerninge the said
messuage & other the premisses.

To the 7. Int. he deposeth that notwithstanding he hath heard comunycacion betwene the
said John Wild & Henry Wild, yet he never did here to his remembrance the said John Wild
promesse unto the said Henry Wild to bring hym a sufficient messuage & other the premisses
after the death of the said John Wild, or that the same by will shuld occupie and enjoye the
lease still.

To the 8. Int he deposeth that in the said comunycacion he remembreth the said Henry
Wild did requyre to have of the said Jo. Wild a lawfull discharge against all men that should
clame any title or interest in and to the said messuage& other the premisses.

To the 9 Int. he also deposeth that the said John Wild did promesse to bring hym suche
a discharge, and as this deponent remembreth, he promessed hym to bring unto hym the same
discharge before the Feast of St Mychaell th' Archangell then next folowing.

To the 10 Int. he sayth that true vt is, the said John Wild and one Knot brought unto the
said Henry Wild, being sick in his bed, a wryting wrytten in parchment to seale, but what day
the same wryting was so brought, this deponent now remembreth not, but supposeth yt was
upon Michaelmas Eve last past.



Deposition of William Taverner of Writtle cont'd

PRO ref C24/49

To the 11 Int he sayth that he did not here the said wryting redd, and therefore knoweth
not what was conteyned in the same, but he remembreth well that the same wryting was so
brought to the said Harry Wild before this deponent came thither, and at his commyng he said
the said Knot sayd the same wryting was word for word as he, the same Harry Wild, invited
hym to make it.

To the 12. Int he supposeth verely that the said Henry Wild requyred the said John Wild
to leave the said wrytinge with the said Henry to peruse and know what was contayned therein,
and whether yt was agreeable to all suche covenantes & agreementes as were before betwene
them agreed, but whether he did so rquyre hym or no, he certainly knoweth not.

To the 13. he deposeth that to his knowledg the said John Wild did not then leve the
said wryting behynde with the said Henry Wild to peruse, but carried it away with hym.

To the 14. 15 & 16 Int. he knoweth not whether the said John Wild were at the house of
the said Henry Wild the day next after St Mychaell last past or no, nor whether the same Harry
Wild did then requyre the said John Whild where his Indenture was, nor whether he requyred
hym that hee myght have the same Indenture to his Counsell to peruse or no, nor knoweth of any
aunswere that the said John Wild made unto hym therupon, nor more or otherwise he can
depose to any Inter. to hym mynystred in this behalf

N

To the 6. Int. he remembreth that there was comunycacion and promesse made betweene
the said Henry Wild & John Wild for and concerning the said messuage and other the
premisses,

In which comunycacion yt was agreed that the said John Wild shuld, in consideracion
of £12 by hym to be paid to the said Henry Wild, have and enjoye all the right, title and interest
of the said Henry of, in and to the premisses,

And the same John Wild to discharg the said Henry Wild of all such bonds as he had
entered into by reason of the premisses,

And that the said Henry Wild shuld have a pece of land, parcell of the premisses,
called Tanners Land, for one yere, for the rent of 26s 8d, and certayne grounde called 7 Acres
and Fordayes for 6 yeres, paying therefor yerely 20s, and one litell barne and one litell stable

without anything paying.



1580
1 in 8 people became Londoners at some time in their lives.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 16

Source: Public Record Office: Assizes 35/23/9 m.65
Title: Croydon Assizes

6 March 1581
Croydon

Justices of the Peace:

Edmund archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burghley

Edward earl of Lincoln

Thomas earl of Sussex

Anthony viscount Montague

John Lumley lord Lumley
William Burgh lord Burgh
Charles Howard lord Howard

Sir Francis Walsingham

John Southcote, justice jur
Thomas Gawdy, justice

John Birch, baron

b

Sir Henry Weston in another commission
Sir William Moor in service

Sir Francis Carew

Sir Thomas Brown in service

Edward Fenner, serjeant in service

William Howard
William Fleetwood, recorder of London, in service

Anthony Crane in service
Robert Fourth, LI. D. in service
Bartholomew Clerk, LI1. D. in service

John Wolley in service
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Thomas Powle, clerk of the Crown

Nicholas Lee
Gregory Lovell
Thomas Marriott
Thomas Pinner
Thomas Lyfield
John Skinner
Edmund Slyfield
Thomas Vincent
William Morgan
Henry Harvey
John Scott
Edward Moor
John Reed
George Moor
Richard Bostock
John Cooper
Barnard Randolph
Robert Livesey
Richard Burton
Lawrence Stoughton
Richard Brown
Edward Bellingham
Edmund Bowyer
William Gardener
Henry Slyfield
Richard Taverner

Absentees amerced £5

in service
jur’
in service
in service
in service
jur’
jur’
jur’

in service

in service

in service

jur’

in another commission
ill
jur
in service
in service
jur’

jur
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jur’
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1581

John Taverner = Elenor Orton, Tamworth. IGI Staffs.

. Edmund Taverner (will) Lichfield 1510-1652 ref. 358 Husb. of
Polesworth.

William Robert Edmund = Elizabeth = Bartholemew
Isabell Lakyne

John Agnes
(son of Winifred 1557)

Ann Taverner married John Burd. Boyd DBV VI (Richard Taverner
killed a John Burd in 1609).

Margaret Taverner married Richard Rushal at St Lawrence Jewry.

Robert Taverner from Lawrence Reynolds, wharf and messuages at
Castle Baynerd, London.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 47

Source: Public Record Office: Assizes 35/23/6 m.3: damaged
Title: Croydon Assizes

10 July 1581
Croydon

Justices of the Peace:

Edmund archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burghley

Edward earl of Lincoln

Thomas earl of Sussex

Anthony viscount Montague

John Lumley lord Lumley

William Burgh lord Burgh

Charles Howard lord Howard

Sir Francis Walsingham

John Southcote, justice

Thomas Gawdy, justice

Sir Henry Weston

Sir William Moor

Sir Francis Carew

Sir Thomas Brown sworn
Bartholomew Clerk dean of the Arches sworn
Edward Fenner, serjeant sworn
William Fleetwood, serjeant

William Howard

Robert Fourth, LI1. D. sworn
John Wolley

Thomas Powle, clerk of the Crown
Nicholas Lee



Gregory Lovell
Thomas Marriott
Thomas Pinner
Thomas Lyfield
John Skinner
Edmund Slyfield
Barnard Randolph
Thomas Vincent
William Morgan
Henry Harvey
John Scott
Edward Moor
John Reed
George Moor
Richard Bostock
John Cooper
Robert Livesey
Richard Burton
Lawrence Stoughton
Richard Brown
Edward Bellingham
Edmund Bowyer
William Gardener
Henry Slyfield
Richard Taverner

FONS

Sworn

Sworn

Sworn
Sworn

Sworn
sSworn
Sworn
Sworn
Sworn
Sworn

Sworn

sSworn
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50

Item no 44

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/24/6 m.3
Title: Kingston upon Thames Assizes

26 July 1582
Kingston upon Thames

Justices of the Peace

Edmund archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burghley

Edward earl of Lincoln

Thomas earl of Sussex

Anthony viscount Montague

John Lumley lord Lumley
William Burgh lord Burgh
Charles Howard lord Howard

Sir Francis Walsingham

John Southcote, justice sworn
Thomas Gawdy, justice sworn
Sir Henry Weston

Sir William Moor sworn
Sir Thomas Brown excused

Sir Francis Carew

Bartholomew Clerk dean of the Arches
Edward Fenner serjeant

William Fleetwood serjeant

William Howard

Robert Fourth, LI1. D. sworn
John Wolley

Thomas Powle clerk of the Crown
Nicholas Lee dead




Gregory Lovell
Thomas Cornwallis
Thomas Marriott
Thomas Pinner
Thomas Lyfield
John Skinner
Barnard Randolph
Thomas Vincent
William Morgan
Henry Harvey
John Scott

Edward Moor

John Reed

George Moor
Richard Bostock
John Cooper
Robert Livesey
Edward Bellingham
Richard Burton
Laurence Stoughton
Richard Brown
Edmund Bowyer
William Gardener
Henry Slyfield
Richard Taverner

FONS

sworn
excued

Sworn

in another commission
sworn

sworn

sworn




1582

Roger Taverner - Camb Alumini - related to Richard.

Roger Taverner of Upminster died, sons Richard and Robert and
Richard's Brother John. Canterbury Wills 10 Rowe.

Joan Taverner married John Talor at Stock/Harvard, Boyd DBV VI.
John Taverner christened Pinvin IGI Worcs.

September, Anne Taverner daughter of Robert Taverner, buried.



1583

Richard - Woodeaton - Richard's son challenge to fathers will.
Canterbury wills 25 butts.

Penelope Taverner (daughter of Richard) married Robert-le-Petite.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 25

Source: Printed

Title: The Third Part of the Reports of Several Excellent Cases of Law,
Aregued and Adjudged in the Courts of Law at Westminster, in the time of the
late Queen Elizabeth; from the First to the Five and Thirtieth Year of Her
Reign. Collected by a Learned Professor of the Law, William Leonard
Esquire, then of the Honourable Society of Gray’s-Inn. Not before Imprinted,
~ and now Published by William Hughes of Gray’s-Inn, Esq. 1686: 107-9

Trinity 1584

TRIN. 26. ELIZ.

IN THE KINGS BENCH.

CLVIIL

TAVERNER AND CROMWELL’S CASE.

Upon an evidence unto a jury, containing difficulty and matter in law; it was
found, viz. that the Bishop of Norwich, 10 H. 8. [22 April 1518-21 April
1519] was seised of the mannor of Northeman in the right of his bishoprick;
and, at his court holden within the same mannor, granted parcel of the
demesnes of the said mannor to one Taverner and his heirs, where, of the said
land in truth, there was not any demise by copy before: and so the said land
continued in copy until 23 H. 8. [22 April 1531-21 April 1532] at which time,
Taverner committed a forfeiture; which being presented, the bishop seised the
land as forfeited; and granted the same again by copy to Taverner in fee: and
so from thence it continued in copy until 8 Eliz. [17 November 1565-16
November 1566] (which interval between 23 H. 8. and 8 Eliz. amounted to 47
years:) [sic] It was the opinion of the whole Court in this case, that the
continuance for 50 years, is requisite to fasten a customary condition upon the
land against the lord. It was also agreed by the Court, that although the
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original commencement, and that customary interest did commence 10 H. 8.
ut supra, from which time, unto 8 Eliz. 60 years passed [sic]; yet the seisure
for a forfeiture which happened 23 H. 8. interrupted utterly the continuance
from the time which might by the law have perfected the customary interest.
So that now, the time before the forfeiture ought not to be accounted in this
case: but the original beginning of the copyhold shall be holden to be 23 H. 8.
when the grant de novo by copy was made; between which time, and 8 Eliz. is
an interval but of 47 years; within which time, a customary interest cannot
attached upon the land: and then before sufficient time encurred, &c. the lord
may well enter upon such a tenant at will: for as yet, there is not any custom
begotten by sufficient time to bind him. It was also agreed by the justices, that
if the lord of a mannor is seised of an ancient copyhold for forfeiture, or by
reason of escheat, and lett the same at will without any copy for divers years,
one after the other, that that is not any interruption of the customary nature of
the land; but that the lord may grant it again by copy.

As to other parcel of the land, it was given in evidence, that at a court lately
holden at Northelman, it was presented by the homage there, that Taverner the
plaintiff being a copyholder of the said mannor, had forged a customary of the
said mannor, containing divers false customs, pretending them to be true
customs of the said mannor, and that he had forged, and put a seal to it, about
which, this word, viz. (Northelman) is engraven; and that he had procured
divers copyholders of the said mannor to set their seals to it; and that he said
unto them, that that customary should be put into the church of Northelman
amongst the charters and evidences of the said church: and that he had now
made his copyhold as good as his frechold. And, if the said offence committed
by the plaintiff, ut supra, be a forfeiture of his copyhold, was the question? It
was argued by Popham, who was of counsel with the plaintiff, that without
further matter, it was not any forfeiture; and yet he confessed, it is a forgery
against the first branch of that statute of 5 Eliz. cap. 14. And so he said it was
lately adjudged in the Star-Chamber: but as to the point of forfeiture, he put
this difference; if the lord demand his services of his copyholder, there, if the
copyholder upon debate between the lord and himself, sheweth forth such a
forged customary, and counterpleads the demand of the lord with it; now it is
a forfeiture, for that the inheritance of the lord is thereby hazarded: as, if the
copyholder after the forfeiture keep it himself, and doth not encounter the lord
in his demand with it in his services, the same is not any forfeiture: as, if the
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copyholder, before any rent be due, saith, that he will not pay any rent to the
lord hereafter: or when a court is to be holden, that he will not after appear to
do any suit at the court of his lord &c. But if, his rent being due, he denyeth
it; or when the court is holden, he saith, that he will not do any suit; the same
1s a forfeiture: as it was lately adjudged in the Kings Bench, in the case
between Sir Christopher Hatton, and his copyholders of his mannor of
Wellingborough. So if a copyholder being with the other copyholders charged
upon oath to enquire of the articles of the court-baron, and sufficient matter
being given to them in evidence, to induce them to find a matter within their
charge, and they or any of them obstinately refuse to find the same, the same
is a forfeiture of his copyhold: as it was adjudged in the case of Sir Rich.
Southwell, Knight, and Thurston. Clench, Justice, conceived that in the
principal case, the offence of the plaintiff, is not any forfeiture, no more, than
if a copyholder makes a charter of feoffment of his customary land, and
delivereth the same as his deed to the party, but doth not execute it by livery,
the same is not any forfeiture. It was argued by Gawdy, Serjeant, who was of
counsel with the defendant, to the contrary: for he said, that if a copyholder
will forge a deed of feoffment, purporting, that the lord of the mannor hath
enfeoffed him of the said customary land, notwithstanding that he keepeth
such charter himself, without shewing it forth, yet it is a forfeiture. At the
length, the Court wishes the jury to find the special matter, and to refer the
same to the Court, whether it was a forfeiture, or not. In this case, another
matter was moved, viz. the auncestor of the plaintiff had purchased divers
several copyholds from several copyholders by several copies whereof he died
seosed; or committed several offences by which he forfeited to the lord all his
copyholds, for which the lord seised, and granted them again to his auncestor
with the ancient rent, and to his heirs, tenendum per antiqua servitia &
consueta, &c. And afterwards, the same copyholder commiteth waste,
whether the same shall now trench to forfeit all the copyhold lands which were
granted ut supra, by one entire copy; or only that which was before the seizure
holden by the same rent, et nihil ultra: for these words, tenendum per antiqua
servitia, do not trench only to the quantity of the services, but also to the
quali8ty; scil. severally, so as there shall be several services as before: as if
A. be seised of copyhold land on the part of his father, and of other copyhold
land on the part of his mother, and thereof dieth seised, and his son and heir
be admitted to it by one copy, and by one admittance; now if that son dieth
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without issue, the copyholds shall descend severally, the one to the heir on the
part of his father, and the other to the heir on the part of his mother, &c. And
afterwards, the jury found the special verdict, and the special matter, ut supra,
&ec.

3 Cro. 353. 1 Roll 508.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 13

Source: Printed

Title: The Fourth Part of the Reports of Sir Edward Coke, Knt., the King’s
Attorney-General, of divers Resolutions and Judgments given upon solemn
Arguments, and with great Deliberation and Conference of the most reverend
Judges and Sages of the Law, of Cases difficult, in which are great diversities
of opinions, and which were never Resolved or Adjudged, or Reported before:
and the Reasons and Causes of the said Resolutions and Judgments. Published
in the first year (the springtime of all happiness) of the most happy Reign of
the Most High and Most Illustrious James, King of England, France, and
Ireland, and of Scotland the XXXVII. the Fountain of all Piety and Justice,
and the Life of the Law. With Notes and References, by John Henry Thomas
Esq. and John Farquhar Fraser, Esq. 27

Trinity 1584

TAVERNER and CROMWELL.

Trinity Term, 26 Eliz.

In the King’s Bench. 1584.

[See Johnstone v. Earl Spencer, 1885, 30 Ch. D. 585.]

8. C. Cro. Eliz. 333. 3 Le. 109. pl. 158. Co. Ent. 272. 288. [S. C. cited acc.
Co. Cop. 74. s. 10. Get. 36. 2 Dougl. 729. 3 T. R. 369. 6 East, 482. 1 Inst
59 b. (4). ii. 633. (9). (H). 2 Bl. Com. 370. Gilb. Ten. 217, 218, 246, 247,
257. 1 Watk. Cop. 303. 334, 5. Vin. Abr. Copyhold N. pl. 1, 2. C. b. pl. 1.
E.bopli L. Us bapl. 4. P.e.pl- 2, 3. Ls € pls 1. 35 4 A 8 ple 2: Cs & ple
5. P. e. pl. 2. Com. Dig. Copyhold G. 9. M. 3. Bac. Abr. Copyhold L. 7.
See the notes and references infra.]
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If several copyholds are held by several tenures, waste in one of them is a
forfeiture of that estate only, though they were all granted by the same copy.
So if the copyholder surrender his several copyholds to one and hisheirs, and
the lord admit him tenend’ per antiqua servitia; or if several copyholds escheat
to the lord, and he re-grants them tenend’ per antiq’ servit’ a forfeiture in one,
is no forfeitue of the others.

In making admittances the lord is only an instrument, and the surrenderee,
when admitted, is in by the surrenderor, and paramount the charges and
incumbrances of the lord.

It was resolved [See the references sup.] by Wray, Chief Justice, Sir Thomas
Gawdy, et totam Curiam, upon evidence to a jury, that if a copyholder be
seised by force of several copies, scil. of Black Acre, by the rent of
threepence and of White Acre by the rent of fourpence and of Green Acre by
the rent of sixpence and afterwards the copyholder commits [1 Bulst. 51 [See
infra n. (A).]] waste in part of Black Acre, or makes a feoffment of part of
Black Acre, or denies the rent of that acre, by that all Black Acre is forfeited,
[Cr. WI. 353. [Infra n. (A).]] but it is no forfeiture of White Acre, nor of
Green Acre [(A) S. C. and S. P. cited acc. Het. 36. Gilb. Ten. 217. 218. 246.
1 Watk. Cop. 334, 5. 1 Cru. Dig. 371. Vin. Abr. Copyhold Z. c. pl. 1. Bac.
Abr. Copyhold L. 7. Com. Dig. Copyhold M. 3. But where the tenant holds
several acres by the same tenure, it should seem that a forfeiture by any act
committed in part will be a forfeiture of the whole tenement, for there is a
condition in law annexed to the whole estate. Thus, if the copyholder commit
waste in cutting down a single tree, this is a forfeiture of his whole tenement,
Roll. Abr. 509.; and though it is said that if a copyholder makes a feoffment
of one acre, parcel of his copyhold, nothing shall be forfeited but that acre, id.
ibid. Gilb. Ten. 246, 7. 1 Cru. Dig. 371. Com. Dig. Copyhold M. 51.; yet as
such feoffment, &c. is incompatible with the relation which the tenant bears to
his lord, the better opinion appears to be that it will operate as a forfeiture,
infra 27 b. 1 Watk. Cop. 335, 6. Bac. Abr. Copyhold L. 7. See further as to
what estate shall be forfeited, id. ibid. 1 Cru. Dig. 371. Vin. Abr. Copyhold
Y. c. Z. c. Com. Dig. Copyhold M. 3. 5. (ED.)]. For although they all are in
one and the same hand, yet every acre is held severally, and to every acre
there is a several condition in law [Post 28. [See n. (B). infra.] tacite annexed
[(B) Acc. Gilb. Ten. 217. 1 Watk. Cop. 334. Vin. Abr. Cop. Z c. pl. 3. Bac.
Abr. Copyhold L. 7. (ED.)], so as the forfeiture of the one cannot be the
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forfeiture of any of the others: so it was at the same time resolved, that if the
said copyholder of the said three acres severally held as aforesaid, surrenders
them to the use of A. and his heirs, and the lord admits A. accordingly, (a)
tenendum per antiqua servitia inde prius debita et jure consueta, or to such
effect; and after A. commits a forfeiture in Black Acre, he shall forfeit that
only, and none of the others, for the said tenendum (reddendo singula singulis)
continued the several tenures [(C) Acc. Co. Cop. 74. s. 10. 65. s. 59. Gilb.
Ten. 218. Vin. Abr. Copyhold N. pl. 2. Z. c. pl. 1. Bca. Abr. Copyhold L.
7. (ED.)]; and so it is not material whether the copyholds be in one or several
copies, but whether the tenure be one or several [(D) Acc. 1 Watk. Cop. 335.
Bac. Abr. Copyhold L. 7. See n. (A). sup. (ED.)], is only material as to this
purpose; and so it was adjudged upon demurrer, Hil. 35 Eliz. [1593] in C. B.
inter James Taverner, plaintiff, and Thomas Cromwell, defendant [(e) S. C.
and S. P. cited acc. Vin. Abr. Copyhold Z. c. pl. 3. and see the books cited in
the last note. (ED.)]. So if divers several copyholds escheat to the lord, and he
regrants them to another, tenend’ per antiqua servitia, &c. they shall be
severally held as they were before the escheat [(F) S. C. and S. P. 3 Leon.
109. Cro. Eliz. 353. Co. Cop. x. 65. s. 59. Com. Dig. Copyhold M. 3. Bac.
Abr. Copyhold L. 7. Vin. Abr. Z. c. pl. 4. (ED.)]: and in this case it was
resolved, that when a copyholder surrenders to the use of another and the lord
admits him, now he who is so admitted is [Post 28 b. 29 b. Mo. 358. Cr. El.
361. Co. Lit. 59 b. Bridgm. 51. 1 Rol. Rep. 503. Cr. Car. 205 [Infra n. (G).]]
in by him who made the surrender [(G) Acc. Co. Cop. s. 41. Tr. 92. Yelv.
223. 3 Burr. 1542, 3. 4 Burr. 1961. 5 Burr. 2786. 1 Inst. 59 b. and n. (4). ib.
ii. 633. (9). Gilb. Ten. 218. 257. 1 Watk. Cop. 90. 106. 283. 2 Bl. Com.
370. Vin. Abr. Copyhold C. b. pl. 1. Y.b. pl. 4. Com. Dig. Copyhold G. 9.
F. 14. Ante 1. 17 a. (M). and see post. 28 b. and the notes there. (ED.)]; and
in a plaint by nature of a writ of “entry in the per,” shall be supposed “in the
per” by him who made the surrender [(H) Acc. 3 T. R. 369. Co. Cop. s. 41.
Tr. 91. Gilb. Ten. 218. 257. 2 Watk. Cop, 37. Vin. Abr. Copyhold U. b.pl.
4. (ED.)]; for the lord is but an [Cr. El. 361. Post 29 b. Bridgm, 51. 1 Roll.
503. 1 Co. 86 a. b. 13 Co. 3. Moor, 112. See Skin. 192. 306. [Vin. Abr.
Copyhold F. b. pl. 1. Com. Dig. Copyhold G. 9. and see the books cited in n.
(D). infra.]] instrument to make admittance, and he who is admitted shall not
be subject to the charges or incumbrances of the lord [(I) Acc. Co. Cop. s. 41.
Tr. 91. 1 Watk. Cop. 283. So it is of an admittance on a descent, id. ibid.
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Ante 4 Co. 22 b. and the note, ib. In like manner he who is admitted on a
grant, is in by the custom, and therefore not subject to the lords’ charges.
Swayne’s case, post 8 Co. 63. Watk. Gilb. Ten. 430. Ante i. p. 17 a. (M).
and the books there cited. And as the surrenderee, is, on admission, in by the
surrenderor, such admission has relation to the surrender, and operates as
from its date, Benson v. Scott, 1 Salk. 185. Vaughan d. Atkins v. Atkins, 3
Burr. 2785, 2787. Therefore, if the surrenderor die between the surrender and
admission, though his heir (as the surrenderor died seised of the premises)
would take by descent, and his widow be entitled to dower; yet, on the
admission of the surrenderee, the esate of the surrenderor, and consequently
the descent and title to dower, would be defeated, Benson v. Scott, sup.
Vaughan d. Atkins v. Atkins, sup. And, on the other hand, if the surrenderee
die before admission, his heir shall be admitted, and thereupon shall be in by
descent; and the widow of the surrenderee shall have her free bench. Gilb.
Ten. 220. 288. Vaughan d. Atkins v. Atkins, sup. Ante p. 22 a. n. (U). So the
admission shall relate to the surrender so as to defeat the mesne acts of the
surrenderor (Benson v. Scott, sup.), and of the lord, Granth v. Copley, 2
Saund. 422.; and to entitle the surrenderee to recover, in an action of
ejectment, the mesne profits from the time when the surrender was made, see
Holdfast d. Wollams v. Clapham, 1 T. R. 600. Roe d. Jeffereys, v. Hicks, 2
Wils. 15. Doe d. Bennington v. Hall, 16 East. 208. cited ante p. 26 a. n. (A).
(ED.)]: and so, reader, where it is said in the case of Clifton and Molineux
before, that by the forfeiture of the husband all the estate of the wife shall be
forfeited, it is to be intended all the copyhold estate under the same tenure.




1584

Robert Taverner of Margaretting mentioned in the will of Thomas
Loveday, Robert Executor.

Thomas Taverner felpham died. Chichester wills and Admins C 96.
John Taverner gent mentioned in will of servant Dorothy
Stockbridge. Mistress Alice Clerk and John Taverner gent. Juxton

Harte.

Thos Taverner = Cecilie Fettwell, Kelttestone IGI Norfolk.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 46

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/26/6 m.57: damaged
Title: Southwark Assizes

15 February 1584
Southwark

Robert Gage gentleman and Elizabeth Gage his wife, of Croydon, indicted for
recusancy.

At Guildford sessions, 3 July 1582, before sir Henry Weston, sir William
Moor, sir Thomas Brown, Thomas Cornwallis, Thomas Lyfield, John
Skinner, Thomas Vincent, William Morgan, Lawrence Stoughton, and
Richard Taverner, justices of the peace, a grand jury - Thomas Jurden,
Geoffrey Payce, John Woodden, Thomas Kelsey, William Worsfold, John
Wood, Henry Wheler, Richard Coxe, Thomas Gawen, Thomas Wyker,
Edward Atlee, James Hillar, Thomas Inwood, Edmund Sutton, Francis
Richardson, Richard Woodman, Thomas Smyth, Thomas Hooke, William
Peyto, Anthony Cowper, Gilbert Clarke, John Grove - presented that they
were recusant for 14 months.

Memorandum, that the justices of assize received a letter from certain of her
Majesty’s counsel, whereby her Majesty’s pleasure was signified unto them
that the abovenamed Mr Gage and his wife should not be touched for this
indictment or for any other of the like effect so long as they be not ..... against
her Majesty .....



1585

Nathaniel Taverner of Ox, gent Born 1585 Ox Alumni.
Thomas Taverner. Lincoln Wills 1320 - 1600 ii 152.
John Taverner, will of Billingborogh, Blacksmith ii 148.

Margaret Taverner married John Hone at clerkenwell St James. Boyd
Mx.

John Taverner Witness to Will of Joane Connett, Devon.
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Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/28/5 m.3
Title: Southwark Assizes

17 February 1586
Southwark

Justices of the Peace:

John archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burghley
Anthony viscount Montague
Thomas bishop of Winchester
Charles Howard lord Howard
John Lumley lord Lumley
Thomas Burgh lord Burgh

Sir Francis Walsingham
Thomas Gawdy, Justice
Thomas Gent, Baron

William Howard

Sir Henry Weston

* Sir William Moor

Sir Francis Carew

* Sir Thomas Brown
Bartholomew Clerk, dean of the Arches
* Edward Fenner, serjeant
William Fleetwood, serjeant

* Robert Fourth, LI. D.

John Wolley

Thomas Powle, clerk of the Crown
Gregory Lovell

Thomas Cornwallis




Thomas Lyfield

* Edmund Saunders
* Edmund Slyfield
Thomas Kirton

* Thomas Vincent
* William Morgan
John Scott

Henry Harvey

* Edward Moor
John Reed

* George Moor

* John Parker

Richard Cousin, LI. D.

* John Cooper

* Robert Livesey

* Edward Bellingham
* Richard Burton

* Lawrence Stoughton
Richard Brown

* Edmund Bowyer

* William Gardener

* Richard Taverner

FONS
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 48

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/28/6 m.3
Title: Southwark Assizes

4 July 1586
Southwark

Justices of the Peace:

John archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burghley
Anthony viscount Montague
Thomas bishop of Winchester
Charles Howard lord Howard
John Lumley lord Lumley
Thomas Burgh lord Burgh

Sir Francis Walsingham
Thomas Gawdy, Justice
Thomas Gent, Baron

William Howard

Sir Henry Weston

* Sir William Moor

Sir Francis Carew

* Sir Thomas Brown
Bartholomew Clerk, dean of the Arches
* Edward Fenner, serjeant
William Fleetwood, serjeant

* Robert Fourth, L1. D.

John Wolley

Thomas Powle, clerk of the Crown
Gregory Lovell

Thomas Cornwallis



Thomas Lyfield

* Edmund Saunders
* Edmund Slyfield
Thomas Kirton

* Thomas Vincent

* William Morgan
John Scott

Henry Harvey

* Edward Moor

John Reed

* George Moor

* John Parker
Richard Cousin, LI1. D.
* John Cooper

* Robert Livesey

* Edward Bellingham
* Richard Burton

* Lawrence Stoughton
Richard Brown

* Edmund Bowyer

* William Gardener
* Richard Taverner

FONS



1586

Agnes Taverner married John Alet at Stapleford Tawney. Boyd & DBV
VII.

Richard Taverner of William. Pershore Holy X IGI Worcs.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 48

Source: Public Record Office: Assizes 35/28/6 m.3
Title: Croydon Assizes

4 July 1586
Croydon

Justices of the Peace:

John archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burghley
Anthony viscount Montague
Thomas bishop of Winchester
Charles Howard lord Howard
John Lumley lord Lumley
Thomas Burgh lord Burgh

Sir Francis Walsingham sworn
Thomas Gawdy, justice

John Puckering, serjeant sworn
William Howard

Sir Henry Weston

Sir William Moor sworn

Sir Francis Carew

Sir Thomas Brown

Bartholomew Clerk dean of the Arches
Edward Fenner, serjeant

William Fleetwood, serjeant

Robert Fourth, LI. D. sworn
John Wolley

Thomas Powle, clerk of the Crown
Gregory Lovell

Thomas Cornwallis




Thomas Marriott
Thomas Lyfield
Edmund Saunders
Edmund Slyfield
Thomas Kirton
Thomas Vincent
William Morgan
John Scott
Henry Harvey
Edward Moor
John Reed
George Moor
John Parker

Richard Cousin, LI1. D.

John Cooper
Robert Livesey

Edward Bellingham

Richard Burton

Lawrence Stoughton

Richard Brown
Edmund Bowyer
William Gardener
Richard Taverner

Absentees amerced 5 marks

FONS

Sworn
sworn
sSworn

in service
in another commission

in service
sworn

Sworn

sworn
ill

Sworn



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 38

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/29/5 m.57
Title: Southwark Assizes

16 February 1587
Southwark

Justices of the Peace

John archbishop of Canterbury
Sir Thomas Bromley

William lord Burgley

Anthony viscount Montague
Thomas bishop of Winchester
Charles Howard lord Howard
John Lumley lord Lumley
Thomas Burgh lord Burgh

Sir Francis Walsingham

John Wolley
Thomas Gawdy, justice sworn
John Puckering, serjeant sworn

William Howard
Sir Henry Weston

Sir William Moor sworn
Sir Francis Carew

Sir Thomas Brown sworn
Bartholomew Clerk dean of the Arches
Edward Fenner serjeant sworn
William Fleetwood serjeant

Robert Fourth, LI1. D. sworn

Thomas Powle clerk of the Crown
Gregory Lovell
Thomas Cornwallis




Thomas Lyfield
Edmund Saunders
Edmund Slyfield
Thomas Kirton
Thomas Vincent
William Morgan
John Scott
Henry Harvey
Edward Moore
John Reed
George Moor
John Parker

Richard Cousin, LI1. D.

Richard Bostock
John Cooper
Robert Livesey

Edward Bellingham

Richard Burton

Lawrence Stoughton

Richard Brown
Edmund Bowyer
William Gardener
Richard Taverner

FONS

Sworn
Sworn

Sworn
sSworn

Sworn
Sworn

Sworn
Sworn
Sworn

Sworn

Sworn
Sworn
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 39

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/29/5 m.7
Title: Southwark Assizes

16 February 1587
Southwark

Alan Clark of Oakwood in Abinger clerk, indicted for grand larceny.

At Kingston sessions 4 October 1586, before sir William Moor, sir Thomas
Brown, Thomas Lyfield, Edmund Slyfield, Thomas Vincent, George Moor,
John Cooper, Robert Livesey, Richard Burton, Richard Taverner, William
Gardener, justices of the peace, a grand jury (Henry Pyke, William
Brasbridge, Thomas Hyller, James Dodd, John Comport, Thomas Kempsall,
Thomas Gawyn, Thomas Rogers, Thomas Harward gentleman, Geoffrey
Richbell, Edward Goodwyn, Lawrence Atlee, John Mellishe, John Humfrye,
John Heathe, Robert Tompson, John Homden, William Smeton, Barnard
Edmonds, Richard Butt and James Sutton) presented that on 16 June 1586 he
broke into the close of Richard Shorye of Ewhurst husbandman, and stole a
grey gelding (worth 33s 4d).

At large.
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No of references ordered: 50
Item no 40

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/29/5 m.7
Title: Southwark Assizes

16 February 1587
Southwark

William Aymes of London yeoman and William Homewood of Newington
wheelwright, servants to Walter Kyppynge, purveyor for the queen’s coach
timber, indicted for conversion.

At Croydon sessions 10 January 1587, before John Reed, John Cooper,
Richard Burton, Edmund Bowyer, and Richard Taverner justices of the peace,
a grand jury presented that on 14 May 1586 at Godstone they caused Henry
Topsyll to transport a load of seasoned spokes (worth 25s), provided by the
inhabitants of Godstone, to Croydon, where on 31 May they sold it to their
own use, contrary to statute.

Pardoned




=

1587

Richard Taverner 1 of 121 passengers in 3 ships - the 4th voyage
made to Virginia - transported as the second colonie. The 5th
voyage in 1590 reports all trace of the Colonists lost.

Robert Taverner. Linclon wills 1320 - 1600 78.

Elizabeth Taverner. Lincoln wills 1320 - 1600 221.

Rumbold Taverner, buried at stock. (see 1563)

John Taverner of St Teath - Cornwall Wills.

Micheal Taverner married Ann Hibbaden at Canterbury, Kent.
Robert Taverner married Jane Ditts Dunston West.

John Taverner of Rendham Co Suffolk - Poor of Atwick Yorks.

Thos Taverner pl, Thos Hale gent and Ann (wife) def. 12 acres
pasture in Lambourne.

May 23rd Bond in £100 from Thos Hubberd, 1linen draper of
Chelmesford to Thos Taverner Citizen and Clothworker of London,
for a messuage called Plumers in Chelmesford now in the tenure
of Thos Hubberd.



FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 33

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Elizabeth cci 57

[May?] 1587

Report of John Taverner touching the forest of Wichwood, part of the jointure
of the Countess of Warwick, assigned to the Earl of Leicester: to the effect
that the forest of Wichwood and the manor of Langley have always been
granted together.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 34

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Elizabeth ccxix 85

[15887?]

Bill of information by John Taverner, surveyor of the queen’s woods, against
Richard Hill, William Taylor and others, for the spoil of woods in Malvern
chace. With the joint and several answers of Hill and the others to the same;
replication of John Taverner, and rejoinder of William Taylor and John
Woodman.



1588
Thos Taverner mentioned in will of William Squire of Gt Ilford.

John Taverner of Pendham - Suffolk wills, Witnessed:- Thos
Denton, Bernett Brascett, George Tavaner, Thos Bartholemew.

Richard Taverner married Margaret Clark at Gt Hallingbury DBV IV
and P. Register.

William of William Taverner Pinvin, Worc, IGI.
Thomas = Mary Skippon (Norfolk IGI)

Robert Born 1588.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 41

Source: Public Record Office: ASSIZES 35/32/6 m.3
Title: Southwark Assizes

29 September 1589
Clapham

Inquisition held at Clapham 29 September 1589, before James Patchinge,
coroner, on the body of Robert Lewys. A jury (William Parkin, John
Godfrey, Richard Harrison, Ralph Turner, Roger Brimsted, Thomas Ayer,
John Golman, Robert Cawsten, Alexander Wright, Richard Stapleton, Henry
Taverner, John Bowelson and John Gardener) found that on 27 September
1589 on Clapham Heath, Lewys attacked Robert Oliver of Clapham yeoman
with a sword. In self-defence Oliver struck Lewys with his sword (worth 3s
4d) and killed him.



1589

March 9 Richard Taverner, gent. Grays Inn admissions register.

All Hallows Bread St:-

Alice Johnson d.1626

? Johnson = Thomas Taverner merchant tailor.
Fowlke William Dorothy Christopher John
8.5.1589 17.5.1590 1592 1616 d.1593

buried at St.Paul's
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 6

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic Elizabethccxxxii 36

30 May 1590

Paper containing lists of privy seals, injunctions, attachments, commissions,
and dedimus potestatem, granted to amny persons in various suits: signed Ric.
Oseley.

The parties’ names follow:-

To Hugh Lloyd Lewes, Lewes Owen, Thomas Hyne, Richard Richman,
Rowland Dande, John Darrell, Abraham Francke, Robert Robins, Richard
Parker, Margaret Barton, William Crowe, Richard Lambe, William Clarke,
Thomas Downes, Edward Longe, Anker Shorte, W. Martyn, William Browne,
Christopher Thistlewood, Francis Howett, Rafe Waller, Thomas Rowesley,
Walter Hawarde, Thomas Seaman, Thomas Beckingham, John Walton, Robert
Rolfe, John Every, William Dowgyll, Hugh Brinckhurst, Stephen Leggatt,
Henry Fynch, Roger Sedgwicke, Thomas Cordell, Henry Izod, Thomas
Fletcher, George Fitzwilliams, George Goddall, Henry Nevill, Hugh Kelsterne,
William Thorne, Andrew Barrett, John Smythe, William Holman, Edmond
Ludlowe, Gartred Michell, Robert Barker, Henry Vylett, John Prycoat, John
Fyndall, William Greene, Reginald Greene, Elizabeth Salesbury, Richard
Becke, Francis Wolman, Thomas Lea, Michael Woodcocke, Mary Vaughan,
John Locke, John Lunsford, Seathe Holmes, Agnes Elrington, Nathaniel
Smythe, Robert Boroughe, Christopher Tomson, John Tompson, the Sheriffs of
London, Thomas Crossbye, the Sheriffs of Middlesex, Anthony Leather, John
Trefry esquire, John Joseph, Thomas Steeven, Richard Taverner, John
Sybthorpe, Michael Jobson, John Champneis, Thomas Richardson, William
Richardson, Clement Fisher, John Nethermill, John Mylles, Nicholas Garneis,
Peter Marchant, Thomas Osborne, Thomas Brampton, George Jaques, Robert
Wythe, William Boyle, Richard Vayne, Walter Williams, William Clarke,
Edmond Leversage, John Cottington, William Bronker, Robert Hancocke,
William Jennings, William Payler, John Atkinson, William Richardson,
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Richardyn Bishop, John Walpoole, John Keye, Thomas Oxet, William Deye,
Robert Stevens, Thomas Ryppon, Josias Clarke, John Argent, Christopher
Elmeston, Dorothy Trawle, George Butler and Francis Phillipps.




1590

Mary Taverner = Robert "Coning" Clark at Kelvedon Hatch. See
1595.

John Taverner married Eunice Hamshire at Willingale, Doe.

Francis Taverner married Alice Cavil at Gt Canfield Boyd + DBV
IV.

Jane Taverner married John Pettit at Bury.

Penelope Taverner married Robert Petty Woodeaton IGI Ox.

1590/1 Jan 7th Q/SR 115/81.82.

Robert Taverner of White Roding and William Josseline of Hatfield
B.O. yeoman to bring forth Faith Hutchin of Frierning, spinster,
apprehended for suspicion of felony, and Robert Lever, yeoman of

Writtle to give evidence against her.

1594 July 5Q/SR128/5
1598 Oct 5 O/SR143/1

Robert Taverner of Morrell Roding on the jury of the QS.

ditto 1599 April 19th Q/SR 145/3
1599 July 5th Q/SR 146/1.

December 16 Katheryn, daughter of Robert Taverner of Stock
buried.
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1591
William Taverner of Christowe (Mt) Devon Wills.
John Taverner Olney Bucks 1591 170 PC & C Vol TIT

Alice Taverner married George Grave in'Willingale Spain, Boyd DBV
VII.

1591 (or 99?) Alice Taverner married William Thorn of Barking.

Edmund Sympson pl. Henry Taverner def. 1 messuage 1 barn, 1
orchard, 6 acres pasture and common pasture. In Danbury £60.

Edmund Barbor and William Fyndynge pl. Thos Taverner, gent def.
manors of Lambourne and Affebridge. 1 messuage, 1 gdn, 120 acres
of arable, 30 acres meadow, 100 acres pasture, 80 acres wood 20/-
rent in Lambourne, Stapleford Abbots, Chigwell and Theydon Bois
and advowson of the Church of Lambourne. £460.

Ref: Morants History of Essex Vol 1 Page 33.

Walthamstow - Estate in the hands of Elizabeth Holcroft 1635 land
in the hands of Charles Maynard.

w3l Toturer bom | Lt manlod Aliatins
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1592

Thomas Taverner - Richard Moyse of Ilford Stole from Thomas.

Robert Taverner of Stock excommunicatetd for stealing lead of
chuch steeple - he was a church warden.

John Taverner of Kirk-in-Holland Linclon, wills 1320 - 1600 501.
Anna Taverner Olney, Bucks 1592 4 & 19 PC & C Vol III.

Richard Freeman, son of Thomas baptised. Godfather Richard
Taverner Woodeaton P.R.

William Taverner married Elizabeth Reaton, at Dunstable, Beds.

John Taverner

1592 July Q/SR 121/11
1595/ 6 Jan Q/SR 132/15
1597 Oct Q/SR 139/3

Oon the Jury panel for Quater sessions for the Dunmow Hundred. In
1592 of Wilingale Spain 1595 to 1597 - Hatfield Broad Oak.




Ref: Morants History of Essex Page 87/88.
Rainham - South-Hall.

1520 John Rainsforth had licence in 1520 to alienate this manor
including £6 rents in Rainham, Wennington Aveley and Upminster.
Henry VIII granted, or sold it to William Bellamy who 12 April
1552 conveyed it to trustees.

Anthony Radcliff Cit. of London held it in 1576 and paid an anual
rent for wardship of Dover Castle - He died 1603. Eventually one
moiety of the estate was in Frances Howland, neice of Mrs Conway
who was married to Barrington Taverner, gent.



1593

Peter Taverner and wife Frances and Francis Taverner grant on a
manor of Hexton.

Robert Taverner labourer indited £10.

Thos Taverner of Lambourne - William Perck and Joan Bennet
accused of stealing linnen from Thos, at the Assize of July 26
(Ass 35/35/T/47). William Perck, weaver of Lambourne, on 19th
April stole 2 table cloths worth 20/-, and divers other parcels
of linen worth 4/- belonging to Thomas Taverner. William
acknowledges the felony.

Robert Taverner, Rayneham and Avely, Essex relict Mary. Wills PC
of C Vol III 50. 30th March daughter Elizabeth married Edmund
Harris at Gt Baddow, described in 1634 as Councillor at Law at
Lincolns Inn.

Marie Taverner married Edmund Hill gent at St Peter in the East
of Oxford (ref. P.W. Tyrrell). December 2nd.

March 2nd Mr Taverner of Lambourne Q/SR 124/57-8 Joan Collen
examined concerning a bastard child which she is carrying. She
is 24 and was born in Navestock but for the last 7 years she has
worked elsewhere. Two of these years were spent in the employment
of Mr Taverner of Lambourne.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 20
Item no 12

Source: Printed

Title: Reports of Sir George Croke, Knight, formerly one of the JUstices of
the Courts of King’s-Bench and Common-Pleas, of such Select Cases as were
Adjudged in the said Courts during the Reign of Queen Elizabeth. Collected
and Written in French, by Himself; Revised and Published in English, by Sir
Harbottle Grimston, Baronet, Master of the Rolls. The Fourth Edition, by
Thomas Leach, Esq. of the Middle Temple, Barrister-at-Law. 1790: 601-2
Michaelmas 1594

MICHAELMAS TERM, 36 AND 37 ELIZ >

IN ¢. B.

CASE 10.

TAVERNER against DOMINUM CROMWELL.

[See Johnstone v. Spencer, 1885, 30 Ch. D. 585.]

If several copyholds are held by several tenures, waste in one of them is a
forfeiture of that estate only, tho’ they were all granted by the same copy.

1 Roll. Ab. 507. 4 Co. 27. a. 3 Leon. 109. Gilb. TEn. 246, 247. Ld. Raym.
1000.

A prescription for one copyholder is good. Post. 390.
4 Co. 31. b.

It is no cause of forfeiture for a copyholder to disobey a general summons of
the Court in the church. Post, 506.

15 V¢
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Co. Ent. 288. 1 Roll. Ab. 507. 1 Leon. 104. Cro. Car. 217. Gilb. Ten. 230.

Trespass.
The case upon demurrer was, divers copyholds were granted by one copy, and
several habendums and several reddendums for every of them; but they all
began at one time, and were to end at one time. The copyholder committed
waste in one of the copyholds. The question was, whether that should be a
forfeiture of them all? - Secondly, for this copyhold wherein the waste was
done, which was cutting down trees, the copyholder prescribes, “that every
copyholder of that parcel of wood hath used to cut down trees there growing.”
The question was, if such a prescription for one copyholder only was good? -
Thirdly, whether the not coming to the Court upon summons at the church be
cause of seizure?
For the first, all the justices resolved that they are several grants, and as
several copies, and the forfeiture of the one is not the forfeiture of the other;
and the several habendums and reddendums make them several in themselves,
although they be all by one copy. Vide 4 Co. 27. a.
For the second, they held the prescription good. For Walmsley said, there is a
difference between a prescription for freehold land and for customary land; for
custom which concerneth freehold ought to be throughout the county, and
cannot be in a particular place, 45 Assise. But a prescription concerning
copyhold land is good in a particular; for de minimis non curat lex; and the
law is not altered thereby; and it may be there is but one copyholder there, for
which he might prescribe. - Beaumond agreed to this difference, and custom
to have a profit a prender, privilege, or discharge, may very well be in a
~ particular. And by Owen it was ruled accordingly in Collis’s case in the
Queen’s Bench.
For the third, they conceived it to be no cause of forfeiture; for it shall not be
a forfeiture but upon refusal to perform his services, or a wilful non-payment
of the rent, or wilful absence from Court: but in this case it may be he had no
notice of the summons, and knew not of the Court; for the summons properly
is to be to his person, or at his house; or it ought to be averred, he had notice
thereof.
And exception was taken to the summons, because it was but four days before
the Court; whereas it ought to be fourteen days at the least. - And of that
pinion was Walmsley. But the other justices were against him therein; for they
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said the summons was well enough for the time. And it was adjudged for
Taverner the copyholder.
Vide Coke’s Entries, 272. & 288.
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Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 14

Source: British Library: Egerton 2713 ff: RCHM xi 50-1
Title: Gawdy Manuscripts 327

19 September 1594
Gressenhall

Letter: Thomas Stywarde to Bassingbourn Gawdy, High Sheriff

Last term a venire facias was delivered to the under-sheriff in a case between
my Lord Cromwell and Mr Taverner. Henry Gibson made a return that the
writ was delivered to Stywarde, who made no answer. Taverner now brings
the writ, with an order of Court to return 48 jurors, as each party may take
exception to 12.

Stywarde will explain at the sessions why he dare not return the writ, which
he encloses with the order.



1594/5 20th January.

John Tavener of Chingford,husbandman, wife Clemence (see 1595).
(D.B. 1994) legacy to Richard Grace,1 Ewe Lamb to
Richard son of John Taverner.

Alice John Giles Thomas Elizabeth
over 21 40/- 40/- each all under 21.

John of William Taverner Pershore Holy X IGI Worcs.
Peter Taverner quitclaims Biscot Manor, Herts to Edmund Wingate.

Francis Taverner of Hexton, gent admitted to Grays Inn,London.



1595

John Taverner married Susan Davis at All Hallows less. Of
Upminster d.1608 Susan re-married Simon Westwood 1614. Boyd Mx.

Edmund Taverner of Oxford born 1595 perhaps M.P. for Woodstock-
Alumni.

William Taverner Christowe (Mt) Devon Wills.

. Richard Taverner, gent Upminster 155 ER 17 Essex and East
Herts Wills Index, died 18th May.

John Barbor

Richard Taverner = Elizabeth Barbor John Taverner

Susan
under 15 years old in 1595 £100

Aunt Margaret Brooke, John Gathorne, God Neice Christian
Taverner, God daughter and neice Mary Clarke (see 1590), sister
Jan Bradwell, Rabage Boreman (see 1568).

(see 1594) John Taverner Chingford, Essex Husbandman testamentary
records in the C.C. of London Volume III 1571 - 1625. 1595
18.224V.15.41.



1596

Elizabeth Taverner married Nicholas Meile at St Magnus, Boyd Mx.
Kettleston Norfolk IGI.

Robert = Anna Grimstone

Marie Anne 1596 Thomas
1594 1598

January, Thomas Tavinner of Gt Ilford Q/SR 136/22 to answer
because he will not 1lodge travellers by the way, and has
sufficient lodging that are bought by the constable.



1597

Robert Taverner Brentwood. Grand Jury Service.

Robert Taverner married Frances Braithwait at Chelmesford, Boyd
DBV 1IV.

William Taverner married Agnes Richman at Bocking - St Mary.

Agnes Taverner of Great Baddow = William Morris of Bursalem
daughter of Edmund Taverner Yeoman (Burnham Co Essex)
late of same yeoman.
ref: London marriage licences.

John Taverner, Trinity College, Cambridge Mat & Degrees P.C. A.B.
1602, AM 1605.

TAVERNER, JOHN. Matric. pens. from TRINITY, ¢. 1597,
2nd s..of Peter, of Hexton, Herts., and grandson of Richard,
clerk of the Signet to Henry VI1II, and of Woodeaton,
Oxon. School, Westminster. Scholar, 1599; B.A, 1601-2;

M.A. 1605. Incorp. at Oxford, 1606. Secretary to Dr King,
Bishop of London. Professor of Music at Gresham College,
1610-38. Ord. deacon (London) Dec. 24, 1620; priest, Mar,

13, 1624—5. V. of Tillingham, Essex, 1624—9. V. of Hexton,
Herts., 1629—-38. R. of Stoke Newington, Middlesex, 1629~

%3, Died Aug. 1638. Buried at Stoke Newington. M.I,

ill dated, Aug. 26; proved, Aug. 29, 1638. (Vis. of Herts.,

i 1634; Al Oxon.; D.N.B,; Clutterbuck, 111. 10.)
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1598

Richard Taverner married Alice Crisp at Whaplode, St Mary, Lincs.
Boyd.

Robert Wroth. kt pl. Thos Taverner and wife Anne def. Manors of
Lambourne and Assbridge 2 messuages, 2 gardens, 40 acres arable,
10 acres meadow, 2 acres pasture, 60 acres wood, and 20/- rent
in Lambourne, Chigwell and Theydon Bois. Warranty against Robert
Taverner father of Thos and heirs of William Hulcott and wife
Elizabeth and Charles Newcommen and his heirs £160.

Oct 5 Q/SR 143/61

John Taverner and Thos Fletcher, yeoman of Hatfield Broad Oak,
to act as sureties for Robert Garrett, yeoman of the same parish,
to keep the peace towards Nicholas Horsley, yeoman of the same
parish.

TAVERNER, JOHN. Matric. sizar from TRiINITY, Michs. 1578.
B. at Barking, Issex. B.A, from Jesus, 1584-5; M.A. 1588.
Ord. deacon (London) May 23, 1589, age 26; ‘ R. of St Peter,
Culchester’; priest, July 31, 1591; ‘C, of St Magnus Martyr
London.’ Probab}:y R. of Diss, Norfolk, 1596-1613. Buriced
Dec. 22, 1613. [To be distinguished from John %‘avcmer,
R. of Woodcaton, Oxon., 1575, and son of Richard, of

. Corpus Christi)

’% LLM(J_:] boc orel s - <24 /262
Chebrrood V Mscdartomse
ol T pasesard et v w%«@sw
Aﬁ‘°{501&F€f/ 62?414<:7C7 a~u£_ wp trordi  Swvor~ quﬂﬁhmﬁ~;b
2.9 T el [S9¢ . . ('/,; Lomn - 1825 ar 4%:-1)

L SN




FONS

Pre-1600
No of references ordered: 50
Item no 34

Source: Public Record Office
Title: State Papers Domestic: Elizabeth celxxii 124

26 September 1599
The Queen to the Master of Requests:

Lord Cromwell, who has deserved well in our service, has acquainted us with tedious suits
depending against him in your Court, specially by Edw. Andrews and Jas. Taverner. The
weakness of his estate cannot bear such extraordinary charges, and the personal attendance
they require diverts him from other courses in our service; therefore we recommend him to
you for relief by a speedy trial and ending of suits, if it may be without manifest breach of
the course of justice.




1599

Thomas Taverner of Olney, Bucks will of Spicer Als Holder Amphill
Road, Bedford. PC & C Admins 1596 - 1608.

Margaret Taverner = William Thorn at Barking DBV VII.

Walter Taverner is listed amongst the Jury panel for the Harlow
Hundred. Q/SR 145/5.

John Woller pl John Taverner, clerk and wife Joan def. properties
in Suffolk and 1 messuages, 1 cottage, 1 rood ar. in Mile End,
London.

Oct 4 Q/SR/147/29-31a
John Brown and Robert Taverner, husbandmen of Leyton, to act as

sureties for Miles Cowche to keep the peace towards Margaret,
wife of William Faireweather, and Mary wife of Thomas Pinaocke.




1600

John Taverner of Upminster wrote book "Certaine experiments
concerning Fish and Fruit". 4° [R. Field] F.W. Ponsonby.
ref. Short Title Cat. of English Books.



